
 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
OF THE 

GOVERNING BODY OF 
BUDA, TEXAS 

 
An agenda information packet is available for public inspection 

In the Buda Public Library.  
 

This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.  Notice is hereby given 
that a Regular Council Meeting of the City of Buda, Texas, will be held on 
Wednesday, October 07, 2009 at 6:30 PM. in the City Hall Council Chambers at 121 
Main Street, Buda, Texas 78610, at which time the following subjects will be discussed: 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. WORKSHOP 

1. Review of the Parks Regulations Ordinance  
 Jake Eason, Parks Director 

 
D. PUBLIC COMMENTS        At this time, comments will be taken from the audience 

on non-agenda related topics for a length of time not to exceed three minutes per 
person.  To address the City Council, please submit a Citizen’s Comment Form to the 
City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  No action may be taken by the City Council 
during Public Comments 

 
E. PRESENTATION 
 

1. Fire Chief, Clay Huckaby, Buda Fire Department, ESD #8, to make a brief 
presentation regarding the Susan G. Komen Foundation/American Cancer 
Society's Fundraiser "Care Enough to Wear Pink Campaign". 

 Chief Huckaby, Buda Fire Department 
 
2. Tom Dahlstrom, representing Pedernales Electric Co-op, will make a presentation 

to Mayor Lane and members of the Council providing them with an update on the 
Cooperative's activities in the Buda area as well as answer any questions. 

 Tom Dahlstrom, Pedernales Electric Cooperative 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Hold a public hearing on a request for a change of zoning from Medium Density 
Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) for Lots 54-60, Block A, Lots 
1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-5, Block E of the Green Meadows 

1



 

 

Subdivision Section 2B consisting of approximately 12.91 acres of land generally 
located at the intersection of Feathergrass Drive and Old West Trail. 

 
2. Hold a public hearing to receive written and/or oral comments regarding a City 

initiated proposal for the Full Purpose Annexation of certain properties containing 
approximately 157 acres of land located on the west side of IH 35, south of West 
Goforth Road and including the adjacent right-of-way (ROW) the same property 
being the Park 35 South Subdivision. 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA       All matters listed under this item are considered to be 

routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will not be 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
1. Approval of the September 10, 2009 Special Called Council Meeting Minutes.   
 Toni Milam, City Secretary 
 
2. Approval of the September 15, 2009 City Council Minutes   
 Toni Milam, City Secretary 
 

H.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  

1. Deliberation and possible action on the appointment of (2) Parks Commissioners. 
 Jake Eason, Parks Director 
 
2. Deliberation and possible action on a request for a change of zoning from 

Medium Density Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) for Lots 54-
60, Block A, Lots 1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-5, Block E of the 
Green Meadows Subdivision Section 2B consisting of approximately 12.91 acres 
of land generally located at the intersection of Feathergrass Drive and Old West 
Trail. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
3. Deliberation and possible action on a revised Preliminary Plan for the Stonefield 

Subdivision located on the northeast corner of Hillside Terrace and IH 35 between 
Old Goforth Road and IH 35. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
4. Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, 

Section 2, consisting of 1.168 acres of land located at the northwest corner of 
Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
5. Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, 

Section 3, consisting of 14.171 acres of land located northeast of the corner of 
Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 

2



 

 

6. Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, 
Section 4, consisting of 9.350 acres of land located northwest of the corner of 
Hillside Terrace and Old Goforth Road. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
7. Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a request by Clear Wireless, 

LLC for a Tower License Agreement to allow the placement of an a wireless 
communications system on the City of Buda water tower located at 500 S. Loop 4 
in Buda, Texas. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
8. Deliberation and possible action to accept the donation of Water and Wastewater 

Line Easements by Buda Wood Works, Davey Plumbing, Thomas and Theresa 
Lemman and Chisum Chance Inc.  for the Rebel Drive Water and Wastewater 
Line extensions and authorizing the City Manager to execute the easements and 
contracts. 

 Stanley R. Fees, City Engineer 
 
9. Deliberation and possible action accepting the donation of a Wastewater 

Easement by Southern Hills Church of Christ of Buda, John Godwin and Hays 
Consolidated Independent School District for the Hays Consolidated Independent 
School District Elementary #12 and authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
easements and donation contracts. 

 Stanley R. Fees, City Engineer 
 
10. Deliberation and possible action on the Approval of the placement of the State 

mandated signs regarding the use of Cell Phones in School Zones. 
 Mike Beggs, Director of Public Works 
 
11. Deliberation and possible action on the request for funding for the Buda Fine Arts 

Festival in the amount of $4,000 for FY 09-10. 
 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
 

I. EXECUTIVE SESSION-CLOSED SESSION 
  

12. The City Council will meet in Executive Session under Tex. Gov't Code 551.071 
Attorney/Client Consultation; Pending and/or Contemplated litigation on the 
following:  1) Discussion regarding the threat of litigation correspondence from 
Attorney Terrence L. Irion regarding petition requesting referendum on 
Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement Concerning Creation and Operation of 
Sunfield Municipal Utility District No. 1 (Formerly Winfield Municipal Utility 
District No. 1);  2) Discussion regarding Barbara Pecuch, Ann-Marie Pecuch 
Sheely and Stephanie Pecuch v. The City of Buda and Bobby Lane; in the 200th 
Judicial District, Hays County, Texas, No. 08-1286. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

3



 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION-OPEN SESSION 
13. Discussion and possible action regarding Barbara Pecuch, Ann-Marie Pecuch 

Sheely and Stephanie Pecuch v. The City of Buda and Bobby Lane; in the 200th 
Judicial District, Hays County, Texas, No. 08-1286. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
 
J.  STAFF REPORTS 

 
1. City Manager’s Report.   
 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
 

• Citizen Advisory Committee Update 
• Water projects 
• Wastewater projects 
• Drainage projects 
• Road projects 
• Capital Improvement projects 
• Grant related projects 
• Special projects 
• Developments 

 
K. CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

  No deliberation or discussion  may take place by the City Council during this agenda item 
 
 

EXECUTIVE  SESSIONS 
The City Council will announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, pursuant to Chapter 
551 of the Texas Government Code, to receive advice from Legal Counsel, to discuss matters of land 
acquisition, litigation, Economic Development negotiations, or personnel matters as listed on this 
agenda.  The City Council may also announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, to receive 
advice from Legal Counsel regarding any other items on this agenda. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 

 
City Hall is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Requests for 
accommodations must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting.  Please contact the City Secretary at (512) 
312-0084, or FAX (512) 312-1889 for information or assistance. 
 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Buda, was posted on the bulletin board in front of Buda City Hall, which is readily accessible to 
the public at all times, by 6:30 p.m. on Friday,  October 2, 2009.  

 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Toni Milam, City Secretary, TRMC 

 

4



 

 

 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above shown notice was removed from the posting location at the Buda City Hall, 
121 Main  Street, Buda, Texas 78610, at _____ on the _____ day of ___________ 2009 and satisfies the 
72-hour posting requirement. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Toni Milam, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

5



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

WWoorrkksshhoopp  IItteemm  NNoo..    
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  JJaakkee  EEaassoonn,,  CCiittyy  ooff  BBuuddaa,,  512-312-0084  

jeason@ci.buda.tx.us 
 

 
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION OF PARKS ORDINANCE WITH EMPHASIS ON COMMERCIAL USE. 

 
 

1. Background / History 
On June 2, 2009 Council approved a 90 day moratorium upon the issuance of permits for and the use 
of the following parks for commercial purposes: City Park, Greenbelt, Cullen Country; Bonita Vista; 
Bradfield; and Stoneridge. During that 90 day period staff was to research other cities ordinances and 
policies then present them to Park Commission for discussion and recommendation about amending 
Ordinance 031104-2 to either allow or not allow commercial use in the described parks. 

 
2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 

Staff placed commercial use in city parks as an agenda item for a special called Parks meeting on 
August the 12th and regular scheduled meeting on August the 19th both of which didn’t have a 
quorum due to commissioners having the flu. Staff scheduled another special called parks commission 
meeting on August 24, 2009 for recommendation of commercial use in parks. The parks commission 
discussed the implementation of a policy and a possible amendment to the ordinance to allow 
commercial use. They voted unanimously (4-0-0) to keep Ordinance 031104-2 as it currently reads 
addressing commercial use in the city parks. 
 

3.        FINANCIAL IMPACT 
  We currently do not charge for commercial use in parks. The current ordinance reads under Section 2 

General: “No commercial activities shall be permitted except when hosted by or operated under the 
auspices of a community event for which a permit has been issued.” There are daily rental fees 
collected for those community events. 

 
4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 

No action needs to be taken. 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

6



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

      
         City of Buda Municipal Park Definitions 
 

a.) City Parks - means all parks in the corporate limits of the City of Buda that 
have been dedicated to the public, including all such Parks that are 
subsequently annexed into the city limits or dedicated to the public in the 
Buda corporate limits. The term also incorporates the Greenbelt area that 
is owned by the city, adjacent to the Missouri Pacific Railroad line and the 
Gazebo constructed therein. 

 
b.) Department – The City of Buda Park and Recreation Department. 

 
c.) Director – The Director of the Park and Recreation Department and/or his 

designated representative. 
 

d.) Community Event - means an event in the City that is open to the public in 
general and that enjoys widespread support, not only from the citizens of 
Buda, but also from the surrounding areas. This will also be classified as 
exclusive park rental and a community/special events packet must be 
completed. 

 
e.) Special Event - means any community event requiring a permit, road closure, 

sales of good or services or charging of admission. This will be classified 
as exclusive park rental and a community/special events packet must be 
completed. 

 
f.) Commercial activity - Commercial activities - includes any person, group, or  

organization, that makes or attempts to make a profit, vend a service or 
product, receive money, or obtain goods or services as compensation from 
participants in activities occurring on public parkland that is owned and 
operated by the City of Buda. This includes Nonprofit Training/Fundraising 
Activity, Outdoor Revenue Generating Program, and Educational groups 
that receive money from participants in activities occurring on department 
land.   

  
g.) Sports associations, organizations or Foundations- any outside organized 

non-profit sports program that is not operated and or staffed by the city 
of buda. 

 
Section 1 Public Park hours of operation 
 

a. The city parks shall be open to the general public between the hours of 
6:00am to 10:00pm. In case of an emergency, or for other good cause, a 
park, or any part thereof, may be closed to the public by a city official. 

 
*The city assumes no responsibility for the protection of persons utilizing the 
trail system because of its inability to supervise the entire trail. 
  
       b. Any exceptions to the requirements of this section are authorized only by      
Council approval. 
 

 
 
 

7



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Section 2 Insurance and Liability 
 
 The City of Buda and its agents disclaim all liability resulting from the exclusive 
use of a municipal park, its facilities and/or equipment, gazebo and Greenbelts for 
events which are open to the public (community events, special events, or any other 
activity specified in these policies). 
 Organizers of these public events must provide proof of insurance indemnifying 
the city of Buda against any liability arising from such exclusive use. However, 
closed events (birthday parties, family reunion, etc) will not require the liability 
insurance. The city council shall have the right to waive the insurance requirement 
for charitable events. The waiver will be made on a case by case basis. 

 
Section 3 Regulated/Prohibited items and Activities 
 

a. Hunting, Fishing and Camping: There shall be no hunting, catching or 
trapping of wildlife within any public park. Any fishing activities must 
comply with the current applicable federal, state, and local guidelines. 
Fishing will only be allowed in designated areas. Overnight camping within 
any publicly owned park or playground within the city limits is prohibited 
with the exception of a city sponsored program or community/special 
event. 

 
b. Alcoholic beverages: Possession, consumption, or distribution of 

alcoholic beverages is prohibited within all City parks and Recreation 
facilities except as follows. 

 
(i) Except as provided in subsection (ii) below, possession and consumption 

of alcoholic beverages is limited to beer and wine served on the 
premises, during community or private special events by individuals or 
organizations that have obtained all necessary approval and 
documents required by the Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission, and the 
City of Buda. The permit holder will hold all liability responsibilities. 

 
(ii) Possession and consumption of beer and wine is allowed during 

designated City sponsored events in designated areas. Consumption and 
possession is limited to wine and beer brought to the site by event  
Patrons for personal consumption and is limited in time to one hour           
preceding the event and during the event. 

 
c. Glass containers: It shall be a violation for anyone exhibiting, using, 

carrying or disposing of glass beverage containers in all city parks. 
 

d. Motor vehicles: it shall be a violation for any person or persons to 
operate any motor vehicle, including but not limited to motorcycles, 
motor scooters and mini bikes, in or through any city owned or operated 
park, except on parking areas and driving lanes provided. 

 
e. Sound Amplification: It shall be a violation for any person to engage in 

using sound amplification equipment of any kind without a proper permit. 
 
f. Open Fires: It shall be a violation to use any open fires or unauthorized 

cooking pits inside the boundaries of any city parks without proper permit. 
 

8



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

g. Fireworks, Firecrackers, Explosives: It shall be a violation to use 
fireworks, firecrackers, or explosives of any kind, in any City Parks 
unless authorized to do so by obtaining proper permits through Hays 
County and the City of Buda. 

 
h. Pets: All pets must be on a leash 

 
i. Sports Association /Organization/ Foundation Facility Fees 

 
(i) These groups must meet with the Parks and Recreation Director 

or an appointed agent and agree to terms in a written contract 
agreement. This contract will cover fees, policies and 
procedures, maintenance, and operation and standards in which 
the City of Buda facilities will be maintained. 

 
(ii) Individual or entities must provide documentation of 

transactions for goods and/or services as well as provide a 
copy of liability insurance policy naming the city of Buda as an 
additional insured party when appropriate.  

 
 

j.      Commercial activity  
 

(i) No commercial activities shall be permitted except when hosted 
by or operated under the auspices of a community or special 
event in which a proper permit has been issued.  

 
 
(ii) Commercial use in Public Parkland is not authorized without 

approval from the City of Buda. Individuals or entities engaged 
with the provision and sale of goods and/or services on City of 
Buda parkland will be required to provide all necessary 
documentation provided by the Parks and Recreation 
Department.  Upon the completion of all required 
documentation, it is the City of Buda’s sole discretion to approve 
the application. 

 
 

 
• Nonprofit Training/Fundraising Activity- A program/training class 

operated under the auspices of a not for profit organization that does not 
collect fees directly from class participants but operates for the 
ultimate purpose of generating revenues.  

        
• Commercial Use Permit- Written authorization from the Parks and 

Recreation Department to the applicant to conduct organized 
educational/leisure classes at designated park sites and to charge a fee 
of participants who desire to attend or participate in the commercial 
activity whether it’s for profit or fundraising.       

 
• Outdoor Fee-based Activities- An organized program or activity that takes 

place at a regular meeting time daily or weekly over a consecutive number 
of weeks and in which the participants pay an enrollment fee to the 
organizer or instructor to attend.  

 

9



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

• Outdoor Revenue Generating Program- Activities/events that are held 
three or more times a month to generate revenue.       

 
• Education Program- program in which attendees pay a fee for any type of 

training or Educational Activity. 
 
• Commercial Use Permit- Written authorization from the Parks and 

Recreation Department to the applicant to conduct organized 
educational/leisure classes at designated park sites and to charge a fee 
of participants who desire to attend or participate in the commercial 
activity whether it’s for profit or fundraising.  

k) Exceptions  
Any exceptions to the requirements of this section are authorized only by 

council approval. Any exceptions to any of these requirements once approved 
by council must show and have all proper insurance and permits pertaining to 
their event or organization. 

 

Section 4 Activities requiring permits 
 
The city shall promulgate application and permit forms that are required or 
authorized by this policy, and the parks and recreation staff shall issue permits 
consistent with the buda parks policy. Permits are required for the following uses. 
 
Distribution and sale of alcoholic beverages                     
Concerts/Sound Amplification                                                   
Use of Fireworks, Firecrackers, Explosives                        
Commercial activity                                                                             
Carnivals                                                    

 
 

Section 5 Parks and Recreation Rental application 
Guidelines 
 
 
a.) Requests for the rental of city park(s) facilities and equipment shall be directed 

to the parks and recreation department, who shall decide the appropriate 
procedure for approval. Community and special events may require an additional 
special/community event application which will be reviewed by the directors or 
assigned staff of the appropriate departments. Once reviewed this application 
will be put on the agenda for Council Approval. 

 
(i) The special event application must be completed and returned to the 
department 60 days prior to the event. 

 
(1) Individuals, clubs, organizations, or businesses may rent city parks and 

recreation facilities, when available. 
 

(2) A deposit shall be required to rent City Parks, Recreation facilities and 
equipment. The deposit shall be a separate check from rental payment. Upon 
inspection and determination that parks and recreation facilities and or 
equipment have not been damaged and clean up cost have not incurred, the 
deposit shall be refunded. Parks should be left as they were upon arrival. 

10



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Section 6 Facilities available for Rental  
 

Pavilions & Gazebo available at City Parks 
 
Buda Sportsplex 
 

     (Available for practices, tournaments and special events). 
     4 recreation / Soccer / football fields & 4 softball fields 
 

City park 
Large Pavilion 
Small Pavilion  

 
Exclusive Municipal Park Rental for Community Event / Special Events  
 
Individuals or groups wanting to have exclusive use of any Buda Parks and 
Recreation facilities must fill out the Communtiy/Special event application. The 
Exclusive Rental rate will be applied for  every 24 hour period the park is rented. 
 

City Park (no admission charge) 
Deposit (Refundable) 
Greenbelt 
Deposit (Refundable) 

 
(A) Refunds 

 
(1)  Cancellation of Reservations:  must be made no less than 14 days prior to the 

reserved date in order to receive a refund. Non-use due to inclement weather 
conditions will be taken into consideration. 

 
(2)  Deposits: Will be refunded upon inspection of the parks staff. The standard of 

cleanup shall be leave the park as it was when you arrived. 
 
(B) Waiving of fees 

 
(i) the City of Buda may waive all or a portion of the fee with the recommendation of 
the Parks and Recreation Commission and the approval of the city council when 
appropriate. 
 

Section 7 Severability 
 In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall, for 
any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the 
agreement and the agreement shall be constructed as if such invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable provision had never been a part of it. 

 
Create community through people, parks and programs. 

11



                                                                          Proposed ordinance 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12



 

 

Commercial Use Checklist 

Name of Business/Organization:_____________________________ 

Contact Person:___________________________________________ 

Contact Information:_______________________________________ 

 

_____ Background Check 

_____ Proof of Insurance showing The City of Buda as additional insured 

_____ Food Handler’s Permit Hays County 

_____ Parking Plan 

_____ Fee 

_____ Description of Product or Service Being Sold 

_____ Sales Tax Permit 

_____ Signs/Advertisement 

______ Electrical Requirements 

 

 

 

13



 

 

 

Definitions: 

Commercial activities - includes any person, group, or organization, that makes or attempts to 
make a profit, vend a service or product, receive money, or obtain goods or services as 
compensation from participants in activities occurring on public parkland that is owned and 
operated by the City of Buda. This includes Nonprofit Training/Fundraising Activity, Outdoor 
Revenue Generating Program, and Educational groups that receive money from participants in 
activities occurring on department land.  

(By type of group and type of activity) 

• Nonprofit Training/Fundraising Activity- A program/training class operated under the 
auspices of a not for profit organization that does not collect fees directly from class 
participants but operates for the ultimate purpose of generating revenues.  

      (Ex. Farmers Market) 
 

• Commercial Use Permit- Written authorization from the Parks and Recreation 
Department to the applicant to conduct organized educational/leisure classes at 
designated park sites and to charge a fee of participants who desire to attend or 
participate in the commercial activity whether it’s for profit or fundraising.                    
(Ex. One time user, TPWD fishing class, food vendor) 

 
o Outdoor Fee-Based Activities – An organized program or series of classes that takes   
place at a regular meeting time daily or weekly over a consecutive number of weeks and in 
which the participants pay an enrollment fee to the organizer or instructor to attend.   
 

 

• Outdoor Revenue Generating Program- Activities/events that are held three or more 
times a month to generate revenue.  

      (Ex. Motorcycle training class in parking lots, Ice skate rink at City Park) 
 

• Educational Program- Program in which attendees pay a fee for any type of training or 
educational activity. 

 

 

14



 

 

Checklist: Required items must be completed and attached to the 
Commercial Use application 

• Background Check(s) – To ensure the safety of the participants / citizens a background 
check must be conducted on all individuals associated with the commercial activities. Applicants 
must distribute a background consent form provided by the city to all individuals associated with 
the commercial activity; this includes volunteers, paid employees and owners. All individuals 
associated with the commercial applicants operations must complete and sign the consent form 
accompanied with a photo id . 

 
 
• Proof of Insurance showing The City of Buda as additional insured-  Any 

commercial activity operating on City Parkland must have insurance in the amount of One (1) 
million dollar liability coverage. This can be in the form of a one day event insurance or by 
including the business as a rider on an existing insurance policy. The insurance policy must name 
the City of Buda as an additional insured. 

 

 

• Food Handler’s Permit  Hays County- To ensure the safety of visitors and citizens it is 

required that any organization, business or individual selling or distributing food must have and 
display a food handlers permit issued by Hays County. 

 
Received on: __________________ Signature: _____________________ 
                                                                                            PARD Representative 

Received on: __________________     Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                             PARD Representative 
Insurance Carrier: ________________      Policy #:___________________ 

Received on: ____________________       Signature: _________________ 
                                                                                              PARD Representative 
Permit #: ______________________ 

15



 

 

• Parking Plan-  Parking is very important when planning your operation. Residents need 

access in and out of their homes. Emergency Vehicles will also need to be able to move in and 
out of the designated area if necessary. A detailed parking plan is required. The plan needs to 
include location, transportation, direction, traffic flow etc. 

 
 

• Fee- There are fees associated with the use of public parks for commercial use. These fees are 

set by the City Council and must be paid prior to approval of commercial operation. 

 
 

• Description of Product or Service Being Sold- A full description of services, items, 

and all products being sold or advertised must be provided to the parks and recreation 
department. This includes all and any costs associated with the products and/or services. 

 

  
 
• Sales Tax Permit- Proof of a sales tax permit issued by Hays County for the associated 

business must be provided. 

 

 
 

Received on: ___________________      Signature: __________________ 
                                                                                             PARD Representative 

Received on: ___________________      Signature: ___________________ 
                                                                                              PARD Representative 
Amount: _____________________      Receipt Attached: _____________ 

Received on: ___________________      Signature: ____________________ 
                                                                                               PARD Representative 

Received on: ___________________      Signature: ____________________ 
                                                                                               PARD Representative 
Permit #: _____________________       

16



 

 

• Signs/Advertisement – All signs must comply with city ordinance. All advertisement 

materials including websites and fliers must be approved by the parks department. Advertising 
at the park will only be allowed during the operation of the organization.      

• Electrical Requirements 

 The need for electrical services for your operation must be carefully considered when planning 
your business and addressed very early in the planning stages. The cost to design and install electrical 
services for your business is the responsibility of the sponsoring organization. 

A licensed electrician must perform all electrical work and be permitted through ATS inspections, City 
of Buda inspector and/or Fire Marshall’s office. Any service located on City property that needs 

alteration for you use, must be restored to the previous condition following the event. 

 The City of Buda will not pay for your electrical set-up needs. The extent of your electrical use 
may require a consumption charge or the use of generators. 

The following must be considered when speaking to your electrician: 

- How many food vending booths will you have that require an electrical source? A list of all 
electrical items to be used in each booth must be provided to the electrician in order to provide 
adequate electricity to prevent breakers from tripping. This includes microwaves, crock pots, 
grills, hot plates, etc. 

- If you are having any live or recorded amplified music, a stage plot indicating the amount of 
electricity required must be provide to the electrician. Live bands can consume large amounts of 
electricity and will require a generator. 

- Do you require electrical service and lighting inside you tents? 
- Electrical extension cords must be grounded free of splices and cracks and be UL approved. 

The City of Buda reserves the right to approve / deny any electrical work done on city property. A 
consulting electrician might be required for your event depending on the extent of work performed. 

Additional Electrical Source information: 

- All plugs and lights located in the park are not necessarily active. Plugs are kept off for safety 
and fire ant reasons. You will need to discuss the layout of the operation with Parks staff before 
making plans that might not be achievable. 

-  

 

 Received on: ___________________      Signature: ____________________ 
                                                                                               PARD Representative 

       Permit #: _____________________       

Will your event require any of the previously mentioned electrical sources?  Yes________  No ________                                                                                                                     

Electricians Name / Company: _________________   Electricians Signature:______________________ 

I have read the above information and understand that I am responsible for any damage to the electrical sources that I have performed 
work on. I am also responsible for any injury that may occur to any person(s) as a result of such work. 

17



 

 

City of Buda 

     Commercial Use Application & Permit 

       Permit No.________  

Application for Commercial Use 

Please circle the park you will be renting 

Buda City Park               Bradfield village                Bonita Vista                Cullen Country               Stoneridge 

                                Greenbelt                                        Whispering Hollow                                        Sportsplex 

Applicant information 

 

Name of Organization:_______________________________  Applicant:__________________________________________ 

Title:______________________________  Address:_______________________________________________________________ 

City:_______________________________  Non Profit IRS #(if applicable):______________________________________ 

Home Phone:______________________ Work Phone:_______________________   Cell phone:_____________________ 

Email 
address:____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Commercial Use information (additional  Packet must be completed) 

 

Date (s) of rental: ____________________    Type of rental:                 day                    week                  monthly 

Use Time:___________to_________________ (hours) Must be within normal parks hours. 

Hours of Operation if Day use or Monthly 

Completion of Commercial Use Packet      Date: ____________________   Reviewed By:____________________ 

Parks Commission approval: ______________________               City Council Approval: ____________________ 

Commercial Fee (staff use only) 

DESCRIPTION HOURS RATE AMOUNT 

    

    

    
 

 

18



 

 

 

19



 

 

    Community & Special Events Checklist 
 
Name of Event _______________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Event___________________      Time of Event __________________ 
 
Contact Person:________________      Phone __________________________ 
 
_____ Park rental application and Special Events Packet Complete       
 
 
_____ Liability Insurance certificate  
           (Naming the City of Buda as the additionally insured) 
 
 
_____ Security 
 
 
_____ Emergency Safety Management Plan      
 
_____ Alcohol Licensing and Permits 
 
 
_____ Structures (tents, amusement structures, etc.) 
 
 
_____ Electrician and needs 
 
 
_____ Fireworks Display Permit 
 
 
_____ Street Closures and Banners 
 
 
_____ Portable Toilets (delivery _____________ / pick up____________) 
 
 
_____ Trash Collection (delivery ____________ / pick up____________) 
 
 
_____ Parking 
 
_____ Layout of the event (parking and parade route if applicable) 
 
_____ Music/Sound Amplification permit 

20



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Special Events 
A guidebook for  
Special Events 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
To all event coordinators, 
 
 Thank you for choosing the City of Buda as your host site for your event. The 
City of Buda Parks and Recreation department is eager to assist you with the coordination 
of your special event. This information packet is designed to help you understand and 
comply with all city policies, regulations, and ordinances related to the production of a 
special event. It is the responsibility of the event coordinator to review all information 
contained in this packet and to comply with all policies, regulations, and ordinances. 
 
 The City of Buda Parks and Recreation Department requires that an application be 
filled out and submitted at least 60 days prior to the event. We will check the availability 
of the facility being requested and put a temporary contract on the date until the event 
receives final approval from the Parks Director and possibly the City Council. A member 
of the parks and recreation staff will inform you of staffs decision, at that time you will 
need to come in and make payment on the facility and sign the contract. At this time a 
timeline and meeting dates will be set. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the 
content and focus of your event, how it will impact city services, park patrons, and 
ultimately to ensure that participants enjoy a safe and well planned experience. 
 
 If your event is less than 3 months away, based on its content and nature; you may 
or may not be permitted to proceed. Regardless, please submit the application for review. 
 
 The City of Buda Parks and Recreation Department also requires a post-event 
meeting be scheduled following the event to evaluate and make recommendations for 
future events. 
 
 As an event coordinator, you are undertaking a large responsibility for the 
production of your special event. Remember that advanced planning will help ensure that 
your event runs smoothly; last minute planning will create havoc and headache. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jake Eason 
Director Parks and Recreation  
City of Buda 
512-312-0084 
 
 
 
 

 

22



 

 

City of Buda 
Buda Public Parks Rental Application 
Permit No.________          
 
 
 

Application for City parks. Please Type or Print neatly 

 
Please circle the park you will be renting.     
  
 Buda City Park                                                      Historic Stagecoach Park                                                     Greenbelt 

 
Applicant information 

 
Name of Organization:_______________________________  Applicant:__________________________________________ 
 
Title:______________________________  Address:_______________________________________________________________ 
 
City:_______________________________  Non Profit IRS #(if applicable):_______________________________________ 
 
Home Phone:______________________ Work Phone:_______________________   Cell Phone:______________________ 
 
Email address:______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Park Use information 
 
Date (s) of rental: ____________________    Type of rental:                 hourly                    daily                Exclusive      
Use Time:___________to_________________ (4 hour time slots) 
 
Additional Information 
Please see the parks and amenities spreadsheet for a detailed listing of each park. 
 

Parks 
 

Buda City Park Historic Stagecoach Park Greenbelt 

Large 
Pavilion 

   

 
Small 
Pavilion 

  
 

 

Gazebo 
 

   

Movie 
Screen 

   

 
Stage 

   

 
Staff  

   

 
Pavilions: Rented in 4 Hour increments. Both pavilions can be reserved all day or Exclusive City Park 
Rental. 
Gazebo: Rented in 4 Hour increments. Gazebo is included in exclusive Greenbelt rental. 
Movie Screen: Requires 4 parks and Recreation Staff Members 
Stage: Placement requirements must be submitted with the application. 
Staff: you can request a Buda Parks and Recreation Staff members for trash pick-up, or other 
maintenance needs that might arise during your event.  

23



 

 

 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Event Insurance 
           
 Any event that is open to the public must have insurance in the amount of One (1) million dollar 
liability coverage. This can be in the form of a one day event insurance or by including the event as a 
rider on an existing insurance policy. The insurance policy must name the City of Buda as an 
additional insured. 

A copy of the insurance certificate must be turned in to the  
Parks and Recreation Department one week prior to the event. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Security Requirements 
 
 Based on the size and content of your event, the City may require the use of certified/uniformed 
peace officers (Hays County Sheriffs Department / Buda Patrol). Security for special events is the 
responsibility of the sponsoring organization. The sponsoring organization must pay for any cost 
related to the security. 
 
 Security guards must be present 30 minutes prior to the beginning of the event to 30 minutes 
after the event is over. Officers must receive a schedule of the event and the hours they will be 
required on site as well as an itinerary for the event. The names, and contact information of these 
officers will be required by the Parks and Recreation Department and due one week prior to the event. 
 
 Guard requirements: two (2) officers for the first 500 people and one (1) officer for every 
additional 500 participants. 
 

The City of Buda has the right to require additional security 
 for your event if deemed necessary 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Certificate received on: ______________________  Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                          PARD Representative 
Insurance Carrier:___________________________  Policy #: _______________________ 

Security information received on:___________________    Signature: __________________ 
               PARD Representative 
NAME OF SECURITY BEING USED FOR THIS EVENT: 
 
Security Company:_________________________________    Phone#:__________________ 
 
Officer #1:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
Officer #2:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
Officer #3:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
Officer #4:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
Officer #5:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
Officer #6:________________________________________   Phone#:__________________ 
 

24



 

 

 
 
Safety Management Plan 
 
 Events that are held on City Property must also submit a written Public Safety Management Plan. 
As the event coordinator, you are responsible for the safety of all participants. Consideration of safety 
must be a top priority in all aspects of event planning. The following topics are a suggestion and must 
be covered in your plan. 
 

- Security Name and Schedule 
- Crowd Management 
- Command Post 
- First Aid Station 
- Traffic Flow 
- Inclement Weather 
- Ingress and Egress of Event / Park 
- Emergency Services on site if applicable 
- Lost Children / Lost and Found Area 
- Fencing and Barriers – ingress and egress 

 
A copy of this plan must be submitted to the City of Buda Parks and Recreation 
Department for obtaining a signature of review from the Fire Marshall and Law 

Enforcement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Alcoholic Beverage Policy 
 
 The Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) controls the sale or distribution of alcoholic 
beverages. In addition to the rules and regulations set by TABC, the City of Buda has rules that apply 
to alcoholic beverages. 
 

a. Alcoholic beverages: Possession, consumption, or distribution of alcoholic beverages is 
prohibited within all City parks and Recreation facilities except as follows. 

 
(i) Except as provided in subsection (ii) below, possession and consumption of alcoholic 

beverages is limited to beer and wine served on the premises, during community or 
private special events by individuals or organizations that have obtained all necessary 
approval and documents required by the Texas Alcohol Beverage Commission, and the 
City of Buda. The permit holder will hold all liability responsibilities. 

 
(ii) Possession and consumption of beer and wine is allowed during designated City 

sponsored events in designated areas. Consumption and possession is limited to wine 
and beer brought to the site by event  

Emergency Plan received on: ______________________      Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                         PD Representative 
Approved:  Yes ____  No ____                                                Signature: _______________________ 
                                                                                                                   Fire Marshall Representative 
 

25



 

 

Patrons for personal consumption and is limited in time to one hour preceding the event 
and during the event. 

 
 
 
Alcoholic Beverage Policy cont. 
 

b. Glass containers: It shall be a violation for anyone exhibiting, using, carrying or disposing of 
glass beverage containers in all city parks. 

 
A copy of the TABC license must be provided to the  

Parks and Recreation Department 1 week prior to the event 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Food Service 
 

To ensure the safety of visitors and citizens it is required that any organization, business 
or individual selling or distributing food have there food handlers permit through Hays County. 
 

A copy of the Food Handlers Permit must be provided to the  
Parks and Recreation Department 1 week prior to the event 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Temporary Structures 
 
 All temporary structures, portable buildings, fences, food booths, stands, stages etc. will require 
a “Temporary Structure” permit available through the Parks and Recreation Department. A map of the 
event site, detailing the location of all structures must be provided in order to obtain a permit. The 
sponsoring organization is required to pay for all permit fees. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Temporary Tents, Canopies and Membrane Structures 
 
Tents and membrane structures having an area in excess of 200 square feet (14'x14') and canopies in 
excess of 400 square feet (20'x20') shall not be erected, operated or maintained for any purpose 
without first obtaining a permit and approval from the Buda Fire Marshal's Office. A map of the event 

Will alcohol be sold at this event:     Yes ____      No ____                                
 TABC Certificate received on (if applicable :)_______________        Signature: _______________________ 
                                                                                                                                   PARD Representative 
 

Structure listing received on: ______________________       Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                         PARD Representative 
Approved:  Yes ____  No ____          Permits issued on:____________________  Initial: ________                  
 

Will food be sold at this event:     Yes ____      No ____                               
 Food Handlers Permit received on (if applicable :)_______________  Signature: _______________________ 
                                                                                                                                   PARD Representative 
 

26



 

 

site, detailing the location of all structures must be provided in order to obtain permit. A  Permit Fee of 
$50 dollars shall be paid to the Buda Fire Department for each tent, canopy or membrane structure. 
 
 
A Flame Retardant Certificate is required for each  permit required tent. Flame Retardant 
Certificates can be faxed to the Buda Fire Marshal's office at 512-295-5818. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ELectrical Requirements 
 
 The need for electrical services for your event must be carefully considered when planning your 
event and addressed very early in the planning stages. The cost to design and install electrical services 
for your event is the responsibility of the sponsoring organization. 
 

A licensed electrician must perform all electrical work and be permitted through ATS 
inspections, City of Buda inspector and/or Fire Marshall’s office. Any service located on City 

property that needs alteration for you use, must be restored to the previous condition following 
the event. 

 
 The City of Buda will not pay for your electrical set-up needs. The extent of your electrical use 
may require a consumption charge or the use of generators. 
 
The following must be considered when speaking to your electrician: 

- How many food vending booths will you have that require an electrical source? A 
list of all electrical items to be used in each booth must be provided to the 
electrician in order to provide adequate electricity to prevent breakers from 
tripping. This includes microwaves, crock pots, grills, hot plates, etc. 

- If you are having any live or recorded amplified music, a stage plot indicating the 
amount of electricity required must be provide to the electrician. Live bands can 
consume large amounts of electricity and will require a generator. 

- Do you require electrical service and lighting inside you tents? 
- Electrical extension cords must be grounded free of splices and cracks and be UL 

approved. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tent Vender: ____________________________       Phone #: _______________________________ 
                                                                                                                          
Flame Retardant Certificate received on: _______________ Signature:_______________________ 
                                                                                                                          Fire Marshal Representative 
Inspection of tents Approved: Yes_________ No _________ 
 
Signature:__________________________________, Fire Chief and/ or Fire Marshal Rep.   
                                                                                                                                             
 

27



 

 

Electrical Requirements Cont. 
 
The City of Buda reserves the right to approve / deny any electrical work done on city property. 

A consulting electrician might be required for your event depending on the extent of work 
performed. 

Additional Electrical Source information: 
 
- All plugs and lights located in the park are not necessarily active. Plugs are kept off for safety and 
fire ant reasons. You will need to discuss the layout of the event with Parks staff before making plans 
that might not be achievable. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Street Closures 
 

All requests for city street closures must be handled through the Buda Police and Public 
Works department. The Parks and Recreation Department will assist in the procedure for street 
closure. Final authorization of the street closure will go through city council.  The sponsoring 
organization will be responsible for all associated costs. A detailed map must be submitted outlining 
street closure request and times of closures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Street Signs and Banners 
 
 Street signs are an effective way to advertise your event and direct participants to designated 
parking areas. When you choose to use street signs, please be aware that you will need to obtain 
permission from the appropriate authorities; this will include the City of Buda Code Enforcement 
and/or the Texas Department of Transportation depending on the location(s) of the sign(s). The 
Pedernales Electric Company performs the installation of the overhead street banners. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Will your event require any of the previously mentioned electrical sources?  Yes________  No ________                                                                 
 
Electricians Name / Company: _________________   Electricians Signature:______________________ 
I have read the above information and understand that I am responsible for any damage to the electrical 
sources that I have performed work on. I am also responsible for any injury that may occur to any 
person(s) as a result of such work. 
 

Request for street closure received on: __________________  Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                           PARD Representative 
Council Approved:  Yes ____ No ____                                     Signature: ______________________ 
              Buda Police Chief  
Signature:___________________         Signature: ______________________ 
                 Fire Chief / Marshal                     Director of Public Works 
 

Request for placement of banner received on: ________________    Approved:  Yes ______  No ______    
 

 Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                       PARD Representative 

28



 

 

Restroom Facilities 
 
 
 Depending upon the size and the location of the event, the addition of portable toilets may be 
necessary. The following guidelines will help you with the coordination of portable toilets for your 
event. 
 

- An adequate number of toilets must be provided depending upon the number of 
participants expected and the duration of the event. Other factors include the ratio 
of male to female participants and the availability / consumption of alcoholic 
beverages at the event. 

- ADA approved accessible toilets must be provided at the event. 
- Toilets must be located on a surface that has adequate water drainage. The 

location must be approved by the Parks and Recreation Department. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Trash and Litter Removal 
 
 Clean well kept grounds are important to the safety and the satisfaction of the event participants. 
Large numbers of trash containers placed throughout the event site in high traffic and eating areas will 
help minimize the amount of trash that ends up on the ground. The use of a rental dumpster is the 
recommended method for disposing of trash. The following rules and guidelines apply to trash and 
litter removal. 
 

- The sponsoring organization is responsible for scheduling and paying for 
dumpsters and trash containers. 

- The number of dumpsters necessary will depend on the number of participants at 
the event, the amount of food and drink available, and the actual size of the event.  

- Plans for a clean-up crew are required. Cleaning crews should be working 
throughout (multiple day events), and at the conclusion of the event. Failure to 
adequately clean will result in the loss of your deposit. 

- Event sites must be cleared of all ground trash immediately following the event or 
as specified by the Parks and Recreation Department. Dumpsters must be 
removed no later than 24 hours following the event. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supplier of Port-O-Cans: __________________________   Phone # : __________________________ 
                                                                                                           
Date and time of delivery:_____________________________________________________________   
Date and time of Pick up:______________________________________________________________   

Supplier of Trash Receptacles:_________________________   Phone # : __________________________ 
Number of Dumpsters: _______________________  Number of trash cans:________________________                                                                                                         
Date and time of delivery:_____________________________________________________________   
Date and time of Pick up:______________________________________________________________   

29



 

 

Parking 
 
 Parking is very important when planning your event. Residents need access in and out of their 
homes. Emergency Vehicles will also need to be able to move in and out of the event if necessary. A 
detailed parking plan is required. The plan needs to include location, transportation, direction, traffic 
flow etc. 
 

 
Fireworks Display 
 
         All fireworks displays require a Fireworks Display Permit. The permit application can be 
obtained from the Fire Marshal's Office. The Permit Fee of $50 dollars shall be paid to the Buda Fire 
Department. Additional information needed for the permit shall include a diagram of the location at 
which the display will be conducted, including the site from which fireworks will be discharged; the 
location of buildings, highways, overhead obstructions and utilities; the lines behind which the 
audience will be restrained and audience parking. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Amplified Music 
 
 Amplified music is permitted and allowed in the following parks 

- City Park 
- Downtown Greenbelt 

 
Park Curfew 
 
 All parks are closed from 10 pm to 6am 
 
 

Any request for extended hours must be submitted in writing and  
all departments must review the request. 

  
The undersigned, both individually and on behalf of the organization, agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 

the City of Buda and its officers, employees, and agents harmless and free from any liability of any nature, including but 
not limited to liability for damage or injury to any persons or property costs and attorney’s fees arising out of or in 
connection with the use of city  recreational facilities regardless of whether the city was actively or passively negligent, 
either solely or contributory in connection with such liability. I certify that we have received and read the rules and 
regulations I, the undersigned, do hereby agree that we will abide by the policies governing the use of this facility and I 
will be responsible for any damages to the facility, furniture, or equipment caused by the occupancy or our organization on 
the premises. 
 
_________________________________                                                                      ________________ 
Signature                                                                                                                                       Date                                                                                                                                                                              
 

 
 

Request for fireworks display received on: ________________    Approved:  Yes ______  No ______    
 

 Signature: ______________________ 
                                                                                                                       Fire Marshal's Representative 

30



   

 B U D A  P R O F E S S I O N A L  F I R E F I G H T E R S  A S S O C I A T I O N  

I A F F  L O C A L  4 6 5 0  

P O  B O X  6 8 3  

B U D A ,  T X  7 8 6 1 0  

 

CARE ENOUGH TO WEAR PINK CAMPAIGN  

 Buda Professional Fire Fighters Association Local 4650 

Did you know… 

The American Cancer Society estimates that women will die of the following cancers:  

             Lung cancer    71,030  

             Breast cancer                                  40,480  

           Colon cancer    25,700  

           Pancreatic cancer   16,790  

           Lymphoma    10,020    

What can I do to prevent from being a statistic?  The American Cancer Society recommends 
early detection screening.  

- Yearly mammograms beginning at age 40  
-  Self examinations as early as 20  
- Beginning at age 50 women AND men should begin screening involving examinations 

related to colon and rectum cancers  
- Individuals with personal or family history of colorectal cancer or adenomas, inflammatory 

bowel disease, or high-risk genetic syndromes should continue to follow the most recent 
recommendation for individuals at increased or high risk.  

How can I get involved?  Simply contact a Buda firefighter to purchase a pink shirt.  We 
encourage all Buda area residents to join with your firefighters and wear your pink shirts on 
October 25th, 26th, and 27th.  This is when we will be wearing our shirts as our on duty uniform.  
The cost of the shirts will be $15 and all of the proceeds raised from the sale will go to the 
Susan G. Komen Foundation and to the Firefighters Cancer Support Network.  

For more information or to purchase a shirt please visit www.iaff4650.org or call the Buda Fire 
Main Station at 512-295-2232.  

 

 

31



32



33



34



 
 

CITY OF BUDA 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
 

The City of Buda Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing at 7:00 
P.M. on Tuesday, September 22, 2009 and the City of Buda City Council will hold a 
public hearing at 7:00 P.M. on Tuesday, October 6, 2009 at Buda City Hall, 121 Main 
St., Buda, Texas to receive written and/or oral comments in regards to a request for a change of 
zoning from Medium Density Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) for Lots 54-60, 
Block A, Lots 1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-5, Block E of the Green Meadows 
Subdivision Section 2B consisting of approximately 12.91 acres of land generally located at the 
intersection of Feathergrass Drive and Old West Trail. 
 

35



 
 
 

CITY OF BUDA 
ANNEXATION 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
The City of Buda City Council will hold public hearings at 7:00 P.M., Wednesday, 
October 7, 2009 and Tuesday October 20, 2009 at Buda City Hall, 121 Main St., Buda, 
Texas to receive written and or oral comments in regards to a City initiated proposal for 
the Full Purpose Annexation of certain properties containing approximately 123 acres of 
land located on the west side of IH 35, south of West Goforth Road and including the 
adjacent right-of-way (ROW) the same property being the Park 35 South Subdivision.  
The City Council will consider the adoption of the annexation Ordinance on Tuesday, 
November 3, 2009.  At said time and place all such persons shall have the right to appear 
and be heard.  Of all said matters and things, all persons interested in the subject matter 
herein mentioned shall take notice. 
 
 

36



  
 

City Council Agenda Item Report 
October 07, 2009 

 
AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  

Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Hold a public hearing to receive written and/or oral comments 
regarding a City initiated proposal for the Full Purpose Annexation of certain 
properties containing approximately 157 acres of land located on the west 
side of IH 35, south of West Goforth Road and including the adjacent right-of-
way (ROW) the same property being the Park 35 South Subdivision.  

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The City of Buda has initiated a proposed full purpose annexation of approximately 
157 acres located on the west side of IH 35 and better known as the Park 35 
Subdivision. At their July 21, 2009 meeting, the City Council adopted a resolution 
directing staff to prepare a service plan and initiate annexation proceedings 
accordingly. 
 
This is a predominantly platted area that is currently developed with commercial and 
light industrial uses.   
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
This is the first of two (2) required public hearings.  The second hearing is 
scheduled for the October 20, 2009 regular City Council meeting.  City staff has 
prepared a service plan outlining the level of current municipal services to the land 
and the timeline planned for the provision of certain services which is included in 
the Council’s packet. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
Water service to the area is currently provided by Goforth and Southwest Water 
systems.  Private on-site systems are being utilized for wastewater service.  Any 
necessary water and wastewater infrastructure to serve the development of this 
property will be the responsibility of the property developer or the water service 
provider. 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the City Council hear public comments related to the annexation.  
No action is required at this time. 

37



 
 
Park 35 Annexation and Zoning Timetable 
 
 
September 4th – Send Written Annexation Notice to all Property Owners and  
         Service Providers 
 
September 11th – Send Annexation Public Notice to Newspaper 
 
September 16th – Publish Annexation Public Notice (also must be posted on  
          website) 
 
September 16th – Post Annexation Notice Signs along Right of Way (IH 35  
          Frontage) 
 
September 18th – Send Zoning Public Hearing Notice to Newspaper 
 
September 23rd – Publish Public Hearing Notice for Initial Zoning (also must be  
           posted on website) 
 
September 23rd – Post Zoning Notice Signs along Right of Way (IH 35   
           Frontage) 
 
October 2nd – Send Written Zoning Notice to all Property Owners 
 
October 7th – 1st Public Hearing – City Council 
 
October 13th – Public Hearing and Planning and Zoning Commission   
     Recommendation on Initial Zoning 
 
October 20th – 2nd Public Hearing – City Council 
 
November 3rd – City Council Consideration of Annexation Ordinance 
 
November 3rd – City Council Public Hearing on Initial Zoning and Consideration  
        of Zoning Ordinance 
 

38



Page 1 

SERVICE PLAN 
CITY OF BUDA, TEXAS 

 
SERVICE PLAN FOR ANNEXATION OF 157 ACRES 

 
Upon annexation of the area identified above and as identified on Exhibit A, the City of Buda will provide City 
services utilizing methods by which it extends services to any other equivalent area of the City.  
 
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION 
 
As used in this plan, the term “services provided' includes having services provided by any method or means by 
which the City may extend municipal services to any other area of the City with like topography, land use and 
population density as those found within the newly annexed areas, including the City's infrastructure extension 
policies and developer or property owner participation in accordance with applicable city ordinances. 
 
1. Police Protection 

 
Hays County, Texas will provide law enforcement services to newly annexed areas at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with like topography, land use and 
population density as those found within the newly annexed areas. 

 
2. Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services 

 
The Hays County Emergency Services District # 8 will continue to provide fire protection to newly 
annexed areas at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City, with 
like topography, land use and population density as those found within the newly annexed areas.   
 
The Hays County Emergency Services District # 2 will continue to provide EMS services to newly 
annexed areas at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City, with 
like topography, land use and population density as those found within the newly annexed areas.   

 
3. Maintenance of Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 
The annexation area is currently in the water service area of the Goforth Water Supply (GWS) system 
and all water and all existing water facilities will continue to be owned and maintained by GWS.  Water 
facility extensions shall be in accordance with the rules and policies of GWS. 
 
All water and wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City of Buda at the time of the proposed 
annexation shall continue to be maintained by the City of Buda.  All water and wastewater facilities 
which may be acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed areas shall be maintained by the 
City of Buda to the extent of its ownership.  The now existing water and wastewater mains at existing 
locations shall be available for the point of use extension based upon the City of Buda standard 
extension policy now existing or as may be amended.  On-site sewerage systems may be maintained in 
accordance with the City’s Code of Ordinances. 
 

4. Solid Waste Collection 
 
Solid waste collection will be provided to citizens in the newly annexed areas at the same or similar 
level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with like topography, land use and density 
as those found within the newly annexed areas.  The City may negotiate with annexed areas to allow 
continued services with an existing solid waste management provider.  After the second anniversary of 
the annexation date, the City will impose fees and provide the service.   
 
If areas with private roads and/or gates are arranged so that garbage may be collected without creating 
a safety hazard, the City, at its discretion, may collect the garbage provided proper indemnification is 

39



Page 2 

received from the community association or individual property owners.  The City will then impose fees 
and provide the service.  Garbage collection locations shall be subject to the approval of the Sanitation 
Manager.  In the event the City does not collect garbage within the areas with private roads and/or 
gates, residents of these areas will not be billed for service after the two-year date.   
 

5.  Maintenance of Roads and Streets 
 
Any and all public roads, streets or alleyways shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that 
other public roads, streets, and alleyways are maintained in areas of the City with like topography, land 
use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas.  Private roads will remain under the 
ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

 
6. Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools 

 
The City of Buda, Texas is not aware of the existence of any publicly owned parks, playgrounds or 
swimming pools now located in the proposed areas of annexation.  In the event any such parks, 
playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and 
facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now being provided to 
other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, land use and 
density as those found within the newly annexed areas.  Private facilities will remain under the 
ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association. 

 
7.  Maintenance of any Publicly owned Facility, Building or Municipal Service 

 
The City of Buda, Texas is not aware of the existence of any publicly owned facility, building, or other 
municipal service now located in the proposed areas of annexation.  In the event any publicly owned 
facility, building, or other municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such 
areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of service now being 
provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like topography, 
land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. 

 
8. Other Services 

 
The City of Buda, Texas finds and determines that such services as planning, code enforcement, 
animal control, library, parks and recreation, court and general administration will be made available 
after the effective date of annexation at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other 
areas of the City with similar topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed 
areas. 

 
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED WITHIN 2 ½ YEARS  
 
Police and Fire Protection and Solid Waste Collection 

 
The City of Buda, Texas, finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements within 2 ½ years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed areas 
for the purpose of providing police protection, fire protection, emergency medical services or solid 
waste collection.  The City finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities and 
other resources to provide the same type, kind and level of service and protection which is presently 
being administered to other areas already incorporated in the City of Buda, Texas with like topography, 
land use and population density as those found within the newly annexed areas.  
 

2. Water and Wastewater Facilities 
 
For the next 2 ½ years, the City of Buda, Texas finds and determines that there is sufficient capacity for 
water and wastewater to provide services to the annexed areas pursuant to the City of Buda extension 
policies.   

40



Page 3 

 
3. Roads and Streets 

 
The City of Buda Texas, finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements within 2 ½ years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed areas. 

 
4. Maintenance of Parks, Playgrounds, and Swimming Pools and Any Other Publicly Owned 

Facility, Building, or Service  
 
The City of Buda Texas, finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements within 2 ½ years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed areas 
for the purpose of parks maintenance, playgrounds, swimming pools and other publicly owned facility, 
building or service.  

 
SPECIFIC FINDINGS  
The City of Buda, Texas, finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any fewer 
services and will not provide a lower level of service in the areas being considered for annexation that were in 
existence in the proposed areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process.  Given the proposed 
annexation areas’ topography, land utilization and population density, the service levels to be provided in the 
newly annexed areas will be equivalent to those provided to other areas of the City with similar characteristics.  
 
TERMS 
This plan shall be valid for a term of ten (10) years.  Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the City 
of Buda. 
 
LEVEL OF SERVICE 
Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal services to each area of the 
City, including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land use, and population density are 
considered a sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas 
Local Government Code. 

 

41



City of Buda - Potential Growth Area

Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam Inc. makes 
no representations or warranties regarding

accuracy or completeness of the information
depicted on this map or the data from which
it was produced.  This map is NOT suitable
for survey purposes and does not purport 

to depict or establish boundaries between land
owners or locations of utility infrastructure where
survey data is available and field locations have

been established.

Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
(Central Texas StatePlane - FIPS 4203)

Units: Feet
Datum: NAD83

Central_Meridian: -100.333333
Standard_Parallel_1: 30.116667
Standard_Parallel_2: 31.883333
Latitude_Of_Origin: 29.666667
False_Easting: 2296583.333333
False_Northing: 9842500.000000

Created by: Richard McEntee, GISP
July, 2009

BUDA ETJ

BUDA FULL PURPOSE
BUDA ETJ

KYLE ETJ

AUSTIN 5 MILE ETJ

6

7
5

IH 
35

GOFORTH

TRIMBLE

HILLSIDE

COMMERCIAL

BO
NI

TA
 V

IST
A

WINDMILL

PINAFORE

STONEFIELD

LA
S 

CR
UC

ES

SANDSTONE

CEMENT PLANT

DACY

LO
VE

GLENVIEW

CASA LOMA

BE
LL

SU
SA

N

RO
CH

A

TRADEMARK

RODRIGUEZ

RE
GI

NA

RE
YN

A

CEDAR

LO
MA

 V
ER

DE

ST
ON

E R
IM

LA
 JO

LL
A

KN
OX

PA
RK

 35

ME
ND

OZ
A

MA
ND

AN

CO
RA

L S
TO

NE

DOLOMITE

ARIKARA

SA
ND

OV
AL

HE
RN

AN
DE

Z

BLOSSOM VALLEY

SEQUOYAH

EA
RL

EX
IT 

22
0 2

21

DI
ST

RI
BU

TIO
N

VILLAGE

BR
AD

FO
RD

DENISE ELLEN

BRECCIA

FLAGSTONE
CLAUDIA

REBEL

TECON
WAREHOUSE

EU
GE

NE

EL
 SE

CR
ET

O

SHELLSTONE

IH 
35

IH 
35

PARK 35

35

1:10,000

Proposed Annexation
7, Adjacent Property
6, Park 35 South
5, North of Park 35 S.
Parcels
Buda City Limit
Buda 1 Mile ETJ
Streets

1,100 0 1,100550 Feet
42



43



44



45



46



47



48



City of Buda 
Special Called City Council Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2009 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Lane called the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Buda Texas to order at 
7:02 p.m.  

B. ROLL CALL 
Mayor Bobby Lane – Present 
Councilmember Place 1 Ron Fletcher – Present 
Councilmember Place 2 Kelly Allen – Present 
Councilmember Place 3 Sandra Tenorio – Present 
Councilmember Place 4 Cathy Chilcote – Present 
Councilmember Place 5 Tom Crouse – Present 
Councilmember Place 6 Scott Dodd – Present 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS        At this time, comments will be taken from the audience 

on non-agenda related topics for a length of time not to exceed three minutes per 
person.  To address the City Council, please submit a Citizen’s Comment Form to the 
City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  No action may be taken by the City Council 
during Public Comments 

 
D. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Public hearing on the issue of providing Public Safety and Law Enforcement 
Services to the City of Buda. 
Kenneth Williams, City Manager  
Mayor Lane called the public hearing at 7:03 p.m. Resident Tommy Poer spoke regarding 
the possibility of a Buda Police Department, she saw good things when we had our interlocal 
agreement with Hays County and the Buda Patrol was in Buda.  She called HCSO several 
times, with no response from the Sheriff’s office.  Prior to former Chief Kidd being relieved 
of his duties, she spoke highly of the Buda Patrol and the visibility they had in the 
community.   
Richard Carey spoke regarding creating a Buda Police Department which would be in the 
best interest of the citizens of Buda.  
Rachel Najara resident of Bradfield Village spoke in favor of creating the Buda Police 
Department.  She spoke regarding being targeted and has had her car broken into twice 
within the last year, and today she had her vehicle stolen out of her driveway.  When she 
called HCSO for an officer to come out, she was told by the dispatcher that they had no one 
available.  She also mentioned being told they were in the middle of a “shift change”.  Buda 
needs their own police department. 
Michael Hemby lives in the Sequoyah subdivision and has been in law enforcement for 20 
years.  He was a part of the law enforcement citizen’s advisory group back in 2002 that was 
put together.  Financially are we ready, as in training, crime labs, investigations, you want to 
hire the best that you can get.  Mr. Hemby stated you need to be prepared for economic 
downturns. Spoke at length about a transition period in working with the City of Bee Cave. 
Carolyn Fees, resident of Whispering Hollow encouraging Council to form their own Buda 
Patrol.  The citizens deserve protection, and needs 24/7 protection.  She stated she is not 
seeing any patrol in her sub-division, and the citizens deserve better.  Need the law 

49



enforcement services here in Buda.  She stated she doesn’t think the Sheriff is going to 
negotiate a new contract.  Without our own law enforcement, HCSO will offer 2 officers at 
the most, and that’s not acceptable.   
John Spiller, resident of Oxbow sub-division, asked why the contract was cancelled, was it a 
lack of control by the City, or was it due to the re-assignment of an officer.  Kenneth 
responded changes in the term of the contract, issues with protocol.  Buda definitely needs 
the protection, and doesn’t think HCSO is going to neglect servicing Buda.  Are you still 
willing to negotiate the contract?  Councilmember Chilcote responded that the City cannot 
get the Sheriff to respond to the City via either a phone call or by e-mail, or by 
correspondence. 
Jeff Barton, Hays County Commissioner Precinct 2 here to answer questions that Council 
may have.  Emphasized from his perspective and from the County Commissioners 
perspective they are willing to work through the same common goal of providing public 
safety for our citizens. He stated the County is determined to protect the citizens of Buda.  
They want to be cooperative in helping Buda to find the level of law enforcement coverage 
that they deserve.  He spoke with their Sheriff’s office and was assured by the Sheriff that 
their services would continue for Buda.  The County is willing to negotiate a longer term and 
is optimistic that we can work through negotiating an agreement mutually.  Councilmember 
Chilcote stated she was very disappointed in the Sheriff’s office, having no contact with the 
Sheriff’s office, concerns from citizens, no patrol going on, just very disappointing.  She 
stated that she tries to make decisions with the information she’s given, but doesn’t 
understand why the break down in communication.  Councilmember Crouse spoke from his 
perspective 4-5 years ago, looked at creating a Buda police force, didn’t want it, because we 
couldn’t afford it then, and not sure we can afford it today.  We have no control over the 
police department, and when we turned it over to the HCSO, the County has dropped the 
ball, and when we approach the County, we’re not getting any response, which led us to re-
asses our situation because we are spending tax payer’s money.  Mr. Crouse stated he would 
like to see Buda work with the County to form a plan to get to a Buda PD within a certain 
amount of time.  Do you think the County has the resources to help Buda to get to that 
point?  Commissioner Barton stated, from his perspective, he doesn’t want to direct Buda to 
any one direction, that’s for the council to decide, but does think the county has some 
resources, and as Cities grow, the Counties have to re-invent what they do, to working with 
the cities, and offer the resources or a super-infrastructure of law enforcement services.  As 
we grow, it will mean more costs, you’re spending a lot of money, but you are getting the 
biggest bang for your buck.  As Mr. Hemby spoke there are a lot of hidden costs, however, 
Hays County Sheriff’s Office feels as though they can provide the resources.  
Councilmember Allen asked “how do we get that communication started”?  Commissioner 
Barton stated he could speak with Sheriff Ratliff again with an emphasis of the citizens 
concerns.  According to Commissioner Barton, the Sheriff has expressed a sincere interest to 
about wanting to continue offering the services to Buda.  Councilmember Tenorio said we 
need to know which direction as a council we need to go in, whether it’s to create our own 
Police Department or to go into a transition period before sitting down with the Sheriff and 
having a conversation.  Captain Mike Davenport from the Hays County Sheriff’s Office in 
attendance stated they will have 2 additional officers in Buda starting next week as per the 
contract.  Commissioner Barton offered a contract amendment if the council is willing to 
agree to the amendment, in lessening the dollar amount of the contract with the replacement 
of a Captain with a Lieutenant.  Commissioner Barton also mentioned they had a meeting on 
September 9, 2009, with offering area wide dispatch services.  Councilmember Tenorio 
stated she doesn’t question the commitment of the Sheriff when it comes to law enforcement, 
but does question his personal concern, there are some perception problems, but with a 
decline of citations being issued at 59%, there is a bigger issue here.  Councilmember Crouse 
would like to work with the County over the next 60-90 days to come up with some contract 
changes.  Councilmember Tenorio mentioned the 60-90 days is over the timeline required 
for the budget.  Questions were raised regarding the amendment to the agreement with 
regards to an additional 4 experienced officers, which we still do not have to date.  
Councilmember Dodd thought the objective was to get 24 hour coverage.  Captain 

50



Davenport said any day, but would not be specific as to when that would happen.   Mayor 
Lane relayed a personal situation of a vehicle being broken into also.  Mayor Lane closed the 
public hearing at 8:45 p.m. and called for a 10 minute recess.   
 

E. REGULAR AGENDA ITEM 
 

1. Presentation and possible action on the issue of providing Public Safety and Law 
Enforcement Services to the City of Buda. 
Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Mayor Lane opened the regular order of business at 8:58 pm.  Kenneth Williams, City 
Manager gave a presentation to the Mayor and Council regarding the Public Safety and 
Law Enforcement Services to the City of Buda.  Mr. Williams offered some history on his 
background in working with public safety and law enforcement.  He then gave some history 
regarding how Buda began looking at the law enforcement issues.  In 2007, an Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement between City of Buda and Hays County Texas was created.  In 
August, 2009 City of Buda gave the County a Notice of Termination to the Agreement which 
would commence in 9 months.   
Motion by Councilmember Tenorio, with a second by Mayor Lane authorizing the City 
Manager to review a phasing in approach and phasing out of the contract with Hays County 
Sheriff’s Office and the hiring of a police chief.  Motion approved with Councilmember 
Allen voting no. 
 

F. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Mayor announced at __9:11_______ p.m.  City Council will go into Executive Session, 
pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, to receive advice from Legal 
Counsel, to discuss matters of land acquisition, litigation, Economic Development 
negotiations, or personnel matters as listed on this agenda.  The City Council may also 
announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, to receive advice from Legal Counsel 
regarding any other items on this agenda. 
 

1. Discuss legal ramifications and issues regarding the changes for Buda Law 
Enforcement Services made to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between 
Hays County, Texas, and the City of Buda, Texas by Hays County and relevant 
opt out provisions, and other legal remedies available. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
The Mayor announced at __10:03_______ p.m.  City Council reconvened back into the 
regular session of the Council meeting.  No formal action was taken. 
  

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2009/10 Proposed Budget. 
Sarah Mangham, Director of Finance 
Mayor Lane opened the public hearing at 10:08 p.m. Hearing no public comments, Mayor 
Lane closed the public hearing at 10:15 p.m.  
 

2. Public Hearing on the Proposed Tax Rate of .225 cents per $100 valuation. 
Sarah Mangham, Director of Finance 
Mayor Lane opened the public hearing at 10:15 p.m.  Hearing no public comments, Mayor 
Lane closed the public hearing at 10:17 p.m.  
 

51



3. The City of Buda City Council will hold a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on 
Thursday, September 10, 2009 at Buda City hall, 121 Main St., Buda, Texas to 
receive written and/or oral comments in regards to the Hays CISD Safe Routes to 
School Plan and the potential City of Buda Safe Routes to School grant 
application for sidewalk improvements. 
Stanley Fees, City Engineer 
Mayor Lane opened the public hearing at 10:18 p.m.  KSA Engineering provided a 
presentation regarding the safe routes to schools program for the purpose of putting 
together a grant application for the City of Buda. Mayor Lane read in for the record a letter 
received from the Buda Economic Development Corporation who is strongly in support of 
this project.  Hearing no other public comments, Mayor Lane closed the public hearing at 
10:50 p.m.  
 
 

EXECUTIVE  SESSIONS 
The City Council will announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, pursuant to Chapter 
551 of the Texas Government Code, to receive advice from Legal Counsel, to discuss matters of land 
acquisition, litigation, Economic Development negotiations, or personnel matters as listed on this 
agenda.  The City Council may also announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, to receive 
advice from Legal Counsel regarding any other items on this agenda. 
 
H. ADJOURNMENT  10:52 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Bobby D. Lane, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________ 
Toni Milam, City Secretary, TRMC 

52



 

 

City of Buda 
Regular Called City Council Meeting Minutes 

September 15, 2009 – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Lane called the Workshop portion of the City Council of the City of Buda Texas to order 
at 6:35 P.M.   
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Mayor Bobby Lane – Present 
Councilmember Place 1 Ron Fletcher – Present 
Councilmember Place 2 Kelly Allen – Present 
Councilmember Place 3 Sandra Tenorio – Present 
Councilmember Place 4 Cathy Chilcote – Present 
Councilmember Place 5 Tom Crouse – Present 
Councilmember Place 6 Scott Dodd – Present 

 
C. WORKSHOP 

1. Discussion and direction to Staff concerning loss of sales tax revenues by 
Buda Fire Department due to proposed City of Buda annexations.  

       Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
       Kenneth Williams, City Manager gave some history background when the City Council 
passed a resolution at their July 21, 2009 regular meeting to initiate annexation of several 
areas adjacent to the City Limits.  Several of the areas contemplated for annexation are 
existing developed commercial properties.   
Since the passage of the annexation resolutions, the City has been discussing the impacts of 
those annexations with the Hays County Emergency Services District #8 (ESD #8).  ESD #8 
collects sales tax revenues from all properties located outside the City limits and within the 
boundaries of the ESD.  This sales tax revenue goes to the payment of debt and operations of 
facilities including the Buda Fire Department. 
The City has held numerous meetings with representatives from ESD #8 and the Buda EDC 
to attempt to negotiate a solution which would mitigate the loss in sales tax revenues for ESD 
#8.  The City and Buda EDC are currently in the process of reviewing and adopting their 
budgets.   
The Buda EDC Board met on September 8, 2009 and discussed this issue.  The 
recommendation of the Executive Director of Buda EDC was to enter into an agreement 
with ESD #8 to do the following: 
Authorize the provision of not more than one-fourth (1/4) of one percent (1%) of the Type B 
sales and use tax revenue, not to exceed $80,000 per year, that would be attributable to the 
sales tax revenue which would have been collected by the ESD #8 before annexation of the 
area by the City of Buda beginning on January 1, 2010 and thereafter; 
The agreement terminates upon the payoff of bonds or other debt instruments issued to 
finance the construction of Fire Station No. 2, or twenty years, whichever is sooner;  
The agreement is executed after following all necessary legal procedures and upon approval 
by the City Council of the City of Buda following all necessary legal procedures. 
The EDC Board did not take action on this item at their September 8, 2009 meeting.  During 
the discussion on this item, representatives of ESD #8 expressed a desire to make minor 
amendments to the agreement to allow for flexibility related to the use of the EDC funds for 
payment of debt on capital improvements.  Additionally, there were several new members 
appointed to the EDC Board and the EDC Board had to elect officers and did not feel 
comfortable taking action until the new treasurer had been given an opportunity to review 
this item and present his findings to the EDC Board.  The EDC Board will be considering 
this item a future meeting. 

53



 

 

Staff is requesting that the City Council consider the request by ESD #8 and discuss possible 
funding options and mechanisms to offset the loss in sales tax revenue to ESD #8 as a result 
of the proposed annexations by the City.  Staff will need direction from the Council to 
amend the City’s budget as necessary.   
The goal of ESD #8 is to maintain the current levels of one-half percent (1/2%) sales tax 
revenue collection.  The proposal by the EDC is to provide one-quarter percent (1/4%) sales 
tax revenue to the ESD.  In order to meet the desires of ESD #8, the City would need to 
provide one-quarter percent (1/4%) sales tax revenue to the ESD. 
Based on the 2008 sales tax revenue generated by the businesses in the Park 35 South 
subdivision, the following would occur after annexation: 
§ ESD #8 would lose $122,556.96 in sales tax revenue annually 
§ The City of Buda would gain $245,113.92 in sales tax revenue annually 
§ The Buda EDC would gain $122,556.96 in sales tax revenue annually 

If the City of Buda and the EDC Board each agreed to give one-fourth percent (1/4%) of the 
sales tax revenue that would be generated from the annexation of the Park 35 South area, 
the following would occur: 
§ ESD #8 would maintain current sales tax revenue levels of $122,556.96 annually 
§ The City of Buda would gain $183,835.44 
§ The Buda EDC would gain $61,278.48 

The examples provided above are for one full year and are based on the 2008 calendar year 
tax generated.  Because these annexations are not anticipated to be completed until the end 
of this calendar year, the City’s current budget anticipates nine (9) months of revenue to be 
collected.  The estimated cost to the City for FY2009-2010 is approximately $45,958.86. 
The City has a variety of mechanisms by which it could provide funding to the ESD.  The 
Council should consider all possible options that are available under the law and provide 
direction to staff regarding any necessary changes to the Budget.  The City may adopt its 
budget prior to reaching an agreement with ESD #8; however, any funding that is agreed 
upon would require a budget adjustment after adoption of the FY2009/2010 budget.  Any 
action necessary would be to establish terms for an agreement to provide funds to ESD #8 
and how to adjust the budget accordingly.  Chief Huckaby added comments regarding this 
agenda item.   
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  At this time, comments will be taken from the audience on 
non-agenda related topics for a length of time not to exceed three minutes per person.  
To address the City Council, please submit a Citizen’s Comment Form to the City 
Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.  No action may be taken by the City Council 
during Public Comments. 
Todd Ruge, 302 N. Cedar St. spoke regarding the upcoming FireFest event and the fire 
department does a good job of blocking the streets, but he is mainly concerned about the 
blocking of the fire hydrants, asks staff to work with the  Buda Patrol and the Fire Department 
in trying to eliminate the blocking of fire hydrants.  
Tommy Poer spoke regarding the referendum petition and read excerpts from a letter dated 
September 28, 2007 addressed to the registered voters in Buda defining the form of local 
government and establishing organization provisions; citizens determining the necessary 
controls over their City government such as elections, referendums, initiatives, and recall, and 
defining the procedures to amend the Charter.  Essentially, the Home Rule Charter describing 
and defining local government based on local preferences and controls as opposed to general 
laws which have been written by the Texas Legislature.  “Question, how can there be any doubt 
or denying Buda residents who have asked for there to be an election”? 
David Patterson, resident of the Oxbow sub-division, spoke regarding the petition referendum, 
putting the land-use amendment on the ballot.  Put the amendment on the ballot voluntarily.  
The residents have spoken and would like to see this issue on a ballot.   
 
 

D. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Hold a public hearing regarding a final plat of Lots 1A-1F, Block C, Cabela’s 
Section One being a replat of Lot 1, Block C, Cabela’s Subdivision Section One 

54



 

 

containing approximately 41.465 acres of land located at the south east corner of 
Cabela’s Drive and Old San Antonio Road the same being on the south side of 
Old San Antonio Road between IH 35 and Cabela’s Drive. 
Mayor Lane opened the public hearing at 7:36 p.m.  Hearing no comments during this 
public hearing, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:37 p.m.   
  

E. CONSENT AGENDA       All matters listed under this item are considered to be 
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will not be 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
1. Approval on second and final reading of an Ordinance annexing certain properties 

located on the west side of FM 967, north of Cole Springs Road containing 
approximately 10.799 acres of land out of the SVR Eggleston Survey, Abstract 
No. 5, Patent No. 25, Vol. No. 16, Hays County Texas and being commonly 
known as the Stonewood Commons Subdivision.   

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
2. Approval on second and final reading of an Ordinance establishing initial zoning 

of Duplex Residential (DR) on approximately 10.799 acres of land out of the SVR 
Eggleston Survey, Abstract No. 5, Patent No. 25, Vol. No. 16, Hays County 
Texas located on the west side of FM 967, north of Cole Springs Road and being 
commonly known as the proposed Stonewood Commons Subdivision.   

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
 
3. Approval regarding the special event / street closure application submitted by the 

Buda Fire Department for the Annual Buda Fire Fest Event October 2, 2009 
through October 4, 2009.   

 Jake Eason, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
4. Approval of the City Council Minutes dated September 1, 2009.   
 Toni Milam, City Secretary 

Motion by Councilmember Tenorio, with a second by Councilmember Dodd to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented, with a correction so noted on the September 1, 2009 
minutes, to reflect Councilmember Allen was absent.  Motion approved, with 
Councilmember Tenorio and Councilmember Allen abstaining on consent agenda item #4.  
 

F.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  

1. Deliberation and possible action on adoption Ordinance approving and adopting a 
budget for operating the Municipal Government of the City of Buda for the Fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2009 and ending September 30, 2010; appropriating 
money for the various funds and purposes of such budget including appropriations 
of money to pay interest and principal sinking fund requirements on all 
indebtedness; providing a savings and severability clause; repealing all ordinances 
and appropriations in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance; and 
establishing an effective date. 

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Councilmember Scott, with a second by Councilmember Allen to adopt the 
Ordinance approving and adopting a budget for operating the Municipal Government of the 
City of Buda for the Fiscal year beginning October 1, 2009 and ending September 30, 2010; 

55



 

 

appropriating money for the various funds and purposes of such budget including 
appropriations of money to pay interest and principal sinking fund requirements on all 
indebtedness; providing a savings and severability clause; repealing all ordinances and 
appropriations in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance; and establishing an effective 
date, and instruct the City Manager to come back to Council with a budget amended if 
needed to include funding for the Buda Fire Department. Friendly amendment made by 
Mayor Lane, with a second by Councilmember Allen  to correct the Buda Fire Department 
to Hays County ESD #8.    Motion approved. 
 

2. Deliberation and possible action on adoption of Ordinance adopting the tax rate 
and levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Buda, 
Texas, for the 2009 Tax Year for the use and support of the Municipal 
Government of the City of Buda for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2009 
and ending on September 30, 2010; apportioning said levy amount the various 
funds and items for which revenue must be raised including providing a sinking 
fund for the retirement of the bonded debt of the City; and establishing an 
effective date. 

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Councilmember Dodd, with a second by Allen, to approve property taxes be 
increased by the adoption of a tax rate of .225.  Motion approved. 
 

3. Deliberation and possible action on Resolution ratifying the recently adopted 
budget that contains a property tax rate that raises more total property taxes than 
last year.  

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Councilmember Fletcher, with a second by Councilmember Allen that Council 
vote to ratify the recently adopted budget containing a property tax increase that raises 
more revenue from property taxes than was raised from property taxes in the previous year.  
Motion approved. 
 

4. Deliberation and possible action on ordinance approving and adopting an 
amendment to the budget for operating the Municipal Government of the City of 
Buda for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2008 and ending on September 30, 
2009; and establishing a savings clause and effective date. 

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Mayor Lane, with a second by Councilmember Dodd to approve Ordinance 
approving and adopting an amendment to the budget for operating the Municipal 
Government of the City of Buda for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2008 and ending 
on September 30, 2009.  Motion approved. 
  

5. Deliberation and possible action on adoption of Ordinance prescribing and 
levying rates and charges for sales made and services rendered in connection with 
the utility systems of the City of Buda including water, wastewater, garbage, and 
for all uses of such water and wastewater connections and facilities.   

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Councilmember Chilcote, with a second by Mayor Lane to approve the adoption 
of an Ordinance prescribing and levying rates and charges for sales made and services 
rendered in connect with the utility systems of the City of Buda including water, wastewater, 
garbage, and for all uses of such water and wastewater connections and facilities.  Motion 
approved. 
 

56



 

 

6. Deliberation and possible action on adoption of Ordinance setting fees for various 
city services and consolidating those fees for convenience; amending various City 
Ordinances; and containing a severability clause and an effective date. 

 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
Motion by Mayor Lane, with a second Councilmember Crouse approving the adoption of 
Ordinance setting fees for various city services and consolidating fees for convenience; 
amending various city ordinances; and containing a severability clause and an effective date.  
Motion approved. 
 

7. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a Resolution to the Regional 
Water Supply Contract between the Hays Caldwell Public Utility Agency and the 
Canyon Regional Water Authority, the City of Buda, the City of Kyle, and the 
City of San Marcos; and declaring an effective date. 

 Graham Moore, Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam 
Motion by Mayor Lane, with a second by Councilmember Tenorio to approve Resolution to 
the Regional Water Supply Contract between the Hays Caldwell Public Utility Agency and 
the Canyon Regional Water Authority, the City of Buda, the City of Kyle, and the City of 
San Marcos, declaring an effective date.  Motion approved. 
 

8. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, 
Silverado Buda Phase IIA Subdivision containing 0.929 acres of land located on 
the south side of Main Street/Loop 4 approximately 1,000 feet west of Cabela’s 
Drive. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
Motion by Councilmember Tenorio, with a second by Mayor Lane to approve the Final Plat 
for Lot 1, Block A, Silverado Buda Phase IIA Subdivision containing 0.929 acres of land 
located on the south side of Main Street/Loop 4 approximately 1,000 feet west of Cabela’s 
Drive.  Motion approved. 
 

9. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a revised Preliminary Plan for Lot 
1, Block C, Cabela’s Subdivision Section One containing approximately 41.465 
acres of land located at the south east corner of Cabela’s Drive and Old San 
Antonio Road the same being on the south side of Old San Antonio Road between 
IH 35 and Cabela’s Drive. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
Motion by Councilmember Chilcote, with a second by Mayor Lane to approve the revised 
Preliminary Plan for Lot 1, Block C, Cabela’s Subdivision Section One containing 
approximately 41.465 acres of land located at the south east corner of Cabela’s Drive and 
Old San Antonio Road the same being on the south side of Old San Antonio Road between 
IH 35 and Cabela’s Drive.  Motion approved with Councilmember Tenorio absent when the 
vote was taken. 
 

10. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a final plat of Lots 1A-1F, Block 
C, Cabela’s Section One, being a replat of Lot 1, Block C, Cabela’s Subdivision 
Section One containing approximately 41.465 acres of land located at the south 
east corner of Cabela’s Drive and Old San Antonio Road the same being on the 
south side of Old San Antonio Road between IH 35 and Cabela’s Drive. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
Motion by Councilmember Crouse, with a second by Mayor Lane on the approval of a final 
plat of Lots 1A-1F, Block C, Cabela’s Section One, being a replat of Lot 1, Block C, Cabela’s 
Subdivision Section One containing approximately 41.465 acres of land located at the south 
east corner of Cabela’s Drive and Old San Antonio Road the same being on the south side of 

57



 

 

Old San Antonio Road between IH 35 and Cabela’s Drive. Motion approved with 
Councilmember Tenorio absent when the vote was taken. 
  

11. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a Preliminary Plan for Lot 1, 
Huntington Senior Apartments containing approximately 5.81 acres of land on the 
east side of Firecracker Drive, north of FM 2001. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
Motion by Councilmember Chilcote, with a second by Mayor Lane to approve a Preliminary 
Plan for Lot 1, Huntington Senior Apartments containing approximately 5.81 acres of land 
on the east side of Firecracker Drive, north of FM 2001.  Motion approved. 
 

12. Deliberation and possible action on approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Huntington 
Senior Apartments containing approximately 5.81 acres of land on the east side of 
Firecracker Drive, north of FM 2001. 

 Ed Theriot, City Planner 
Motion by Mayor Lane, with a second by Councilmember Chilcote on the approval of a 
Final Plat for Lot 1, Huntington Senior Apartments containing approximately 5.81 acres of 
land on the east side of Firecracker Drive, north of FM 2001.  Motion approved. 
 

G. EXECUTIVE SESSION – CLOSED SESSION 
  

13. The City Council will meet in executive Session under Tex. Gov’t Code 551.071 
Attorney/Client Consultation; Pending and/or Contemplated litigation on the 
following:  (1) Discuss legal issues involved in the proposed referendum on 
Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement Concerning Creation and Operation of 
Sunfield Municipal Utility District No. 1 (Formally Winfield Municipal Utility 
District No. 1) and application of the provisions of the Buda Home Rule Charter, 
state law, and case law precedent; (2)  Discuss legal issues involved in the 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between Hays County, Texas, and the City of 
Buda, Texas for Law Enforcement Service; (3) Discussion regarding possible 
litigation against Austin Bridge and Road LP regarding the Bonita Vista 
subdivision road construction project. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
Mayor Lane announced at 7:40 p.m. that Council would go into Executive Session under 
Tex.  Gov’t Code 551.71 Attorney/Cient Consultation; pending and/or contemplated 
litigation on the legal issues involved in the proposed referendum on Amendment No. 3 to 
the Agreement Concerning Creation and Operation of Sunfield Municipal Utility District 
No. 1 (Formally Winfield Municipal Utility District No. 1) and application of the provisions 
of the Buda Home Rule Charter, state law, and case law precedent; and to discuss possible 
litigation against Austin Bridge and Road LP regarding the Bonita Vista subdivision road 
construction project. Discussion regarding an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between 
Hays County, Texas, and the City of Buda, Texas for Law Enforcement Services was pulled 
from the Executive Session. 
Mayor Lane announced at 8:12 p.m. that Council was back in session. 
 

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION – OPEN  SESSION 
 

14. Presentation by City Secretary of referendum petition certification process and 
determination of sufficiency. 

 Toni Milam, City Secretary 
No formal action taken.  City Secretary, Toni Milam made a presentation to the Mayor and 
Councilmember regarding the referendum petition certification process and determination 
of sufficiency.  Total number of registered voters – 3514; total number of signatures 

58



 

 

gathered was 792 with 4 signatures found to be invalid.  However, 20% of the signatures 
gathered totaled 788.   
 

15. Deliberation and possible action on petition received and certified by City 
Secretary for a  proposed referendum on Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement 
Concerning Creation and Operation of Sunfield Municipal Utility District No. 1 
(Formally Winfield Municipal Utility District No. 1) and application of the 
provisions of the Buda Home Rule Charter Section 9.13; and direction to Staff. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
Nancy Brinkley spoke regarding the petition referendum on Amendment No. 3 asking 
Council to allow the voters to decide to vote for or against this Amendment. 
Motion by Councilmember Crouse, “Based on the legal advice of the City Attorney, I move 
to reject the referendum petition regarding Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement Concerning 
the Creation and Operation of Sunfield Municipal Utility District No. 1 (formally Winfield 
Municipal Utility District No. 1) because it does not qualify as an ordinance, is not an issue 
that is subject to the referendum provisions of the Buda Home Rule Charter, and therefore, 
the action requested may not be taken regardless of the outcome of the election”, motion 
seconded by Councilmember Allen.  Motion approved, with Councilmember Tenorio voting 
nay. 
 

16. Deliberation and possible action regarding the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 
for Law Enforcement Services between Hays County, Texas, and the City of 
Buda, Texas; alternatives available and direction to Staff. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
This agenda item was pulled and no action was taken. 
 

17. Deliberation and possible action authorizing the City Attorney to file suit against 
Austin Bridge and Road LP and pursue all necessary legal action against Austin 
Bridge and Road LP relating to any and all claims associated with the Bonita 
Vista subdivision road construction project. 

 Susan Rocha, City Attorney 
Motion by Councilmember Chilcote, with a second by Councilmember Tenorio to authorize 
the City Manager and the City Attorney to take any necessary action, including litigation 
when they deem appropriate, to resolve and correct the roads conditions in the Bonita Vista 
subdivision.  Motion approved. 
 

I.  STAFF REPORTS 
 
1. City Manager’s Report.   
 Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
 

• Citizen Advisory Committee Update 
• Water projects 
• Wastewater projects 
• Drainage projects 
• Road projects 
• Capital Improvement projects 
• Grant related projects 
• Special projects 
• Developments 

 
J. CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

59



 

 

  No deliberation or discussion may take place by the City Council during this agenda item 
Councilmember Dodd requested taking a look at the fire hydrants for markings and for fire land 
markings. 
Councilmember Chilcote requested bring back the discussion on City Park 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT  10:00 p.m. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Bobby D. Lane, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Toni Milam, City Secretary, TRMC 

 
 
 
 
 

 

60



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  NNoo..    
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  JJaakkee  EEaassoonn,,  CCiittyy  ooff  BBuuddaa,,  512-312-0084  

jeason@ci.buda.tx.us 
 

 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the appointment of  
                 (2) Parks Commissioners. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
Last month one of the available positions on the Parks Commission was 

filled by the appointment of Keli Daniels. That left one open position. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

 THE PARKS COMMISSION CURRENTLY HAS TWO POSITIONS AVAILBALE TO FILL. 
ONE OF THOSE POSITIONS IS VACANT THE OTHER IS AN EXPIRED TERM WHICH IS NOW 
AVAILABLE FOR REAPPOINTMNET OR APPOINTMENT OF APPLICANTS. CITY 
SECRETARY TONI MILAM RECEIVED THREE APPLICATIONS FOR THE VACANT 
POSITIONS. APPLICATIONS WERE SUMBITTED BY JANICE KEARLY AND JOHN 
SANCHEZ. THE OTHER APPLICATION WAS RECEIVED BY COMMISSIONER ALTMILLER 
SEEKING REAPPOINTMENT TO HER CURRENT POSITION. IF APPOINTED, ALL SEATS ON 
THE PARKS COMMISSION WILL BE FILLED. 
 

3.        FINANCIAL IMPACT 
  There is no financial impact. 

 
4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the appointment of two of the applicants to the Parks 
Commission. 

 
   
 
 
 

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



  
 

City Council 
Agenda Item Report 

October 7th, 2009 
 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  
Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 

SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on a request for a change of zoning 
from Medium Density Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) 
for Lots 54-60, Block A, Lots 1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-
5, Block E of the Green Meadows Subdivision Section 2B consisting of 
approximately 12.91 acres of land generally located at the intersection of 
Feathergrass Drive and Old West Trail. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The final plat of Green Meadows 2B was approved on August 19, 2008.  The 
zoning of the Green Meadows Subdivision is divided between (HR) High Density 
Residential and (MR) Medium Density Residential.  Centex Homes has been 
developing this property for single family residential development.   

 
2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 

 
The City has been reviewing and approving building permits for homes within 
Section 2B.  Section 2B contains 54 total single family lots.  Of these 54 lots, 51 are 
zoned MR and three (3) are zoned HR.  46 lots have either been constructed and 
sold, are under construction or have approved building permits issued for the lots.  
It was recently discovered by the developer that the approved building permits were 
reviewed and approved for compliance with the setback requirements for the HR 
District.  The following chart illustrates the development standards for the HR and 
MR Districts: 
 

Standard MR District HR District 
Allowable Density (upa) 4.00 8.00 
Minimum Lot Area (sq. ft.) 7,500 5,063 
Minimum Lot Width (ft) 55 45 
Minimum Front Yard 20 15 
Minimum Back Yard 10 5 
Minimum Side Yard 5 5 

 

71



The homes in this subdivision have been approved and/or constructed with a front 
yard setback of 18.5 feet.  As a result, these homes encroach into the front yard 
setback by approximately three and one-half feet (3.5’).  All other lot development 
and dimensional standards have been met for the MR District. 
 
The Developer and Homeowners are requesting a zoning change from MR to HR to 
allow for the front yard setback to be in conformance with the zoning requirements.  
Since this subdivision has been platted, this zoning change request would have no 
impact on any other lot standards without a replat. 
 
Included in the Council’s packets are the zoning change request letter and several 
exhibits illustrating the affected lots. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
N/A 
 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

This request for zoning has been reviewed for consistency with existing City codes 
and ordinances.  Section 3.7(4)c. of the UDC provides for the general criteria for 
approval of a zoning change: 
 
(i.) The application is complete and the information contained within the application 

is sufficient and correct enough to allow adequate review and final action. 
(ii.) Zoning changes may be approved when the following standards are met: 

1. The zoning change is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. The zoning change promotes the health, safety or general welfare of the 

City and the safe, orderly and healthful development of the City; 
3. The zoning change is compatible with and conforms with uses of nearby 

property and the character of the neighborhood. 
4. The property affected by the zoning change is suitable for uses permitted by 

the proposed amendment to the zoning map; 
5. Infrastructure, including roadway adequacy, sewer, water and stormwater 

facilities, is or is committed to be available that is generally suitable and 
adequate for the proposed use; 

6. Zoning variance requests will not be considered.  Zoning changes must be 
made by Zoning Map Amendment. 

(iii.) All amendments must be in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, which 
may be amended according to the procedure in this Section.  Newly annexed 
areas shall be zoned during the annexation process. 

 
On September 22, 2009, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 
approval of the proposed zoning change by a vote of 6 to 1.  In addition to the 
approval recommendation, the P&Z requested that staff provide Centex Homes with 
a copy of the zoning change Ordinance once it is approved and that Centex provide 
this Ordinance to all property owners within the development.  Centex agreed to this 
request. 

72



73



74



75



76



  
 

City Council 
Agenda Item Report 

Ocotober 07, 2009 
 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  
Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on a revised Preliminary Plan for the 
Stonefield Subdivision located on the northeast corner of Hillside Terrace and 
IH 35 between Old Goforth Road and IH 35. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The preliminary plan for Stonefield was originally approved in the fall of 2005 and 
was originally referred to as the “Horton Tract”.  The applicant is proposing to revise 
the existing preliminary plan to adjust the lot/street layout, revise the location and 
size of detention facilities and revise the park plan. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
This revised preliminary plat contains a total of 698 residential lots and 31 additional 
lots being commercial, access, parkland, landscape and other type lots.  The 
preliminary plan is being revised to adjust the lot and street layout, to reflect 
changes to phases that have already been approved and recorded and to reflect 
other minor changes.   
 
The following is a list of changes related to the revised preliminary plan: 
 
1. Block H becomes Block Y 
2. Lots 1-43, Block H become Lots 1-38 Block Y and Detention/Water Quality 

Pond #2 configuration changes 
3. Lots 15-22 Block O and the Detention/Water Quality Pond #3 become Lots 15-

30, Block O with a smaller detention/water quality pond 
4. Blocks J, K, L, and M change in configuration and number of lots 

a. Block J, Lots 1-6 move north 
b. Block K, Lots 1-21 become Lots 1-24 
c. Block L, Lots 1-21 become Lots 1-17 
d. Block M, Lots 1-29 become Lots 1-21 

5. The Section One lot and block numbers change to reflect the lot and block 
numbers on the recorded plat. 

 

77



The Parks Commission met on September 16, 2009 to consider this item and voted 
unanimously to recommend approval of the proposed parks plan with a fee-lieu 
payment of $418,800 for parkland improvements.  The payment will be collected on 
a per lot pro-rated basis as the property is platted.  Sections 2, 3, and 4 of 
Stonefield consist of a total of 81 lots and are proposed for final platting at tonight’s 
meeting.  Thus the amount to be collected for these sections will be $59,829.03. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
N/A 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Full size copies of the preliminary plan have been included in your packet.  All staff 
review comments have been adequately addressed.  Staff recommends approval of 
this preliminary plan and the P&Z unanimously recommended the approval of the 
Plan on September 22, 2009. 

78



79



80



81



82



  
 

City Council 
Agenda Item Report 

October 07, 2009 
 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  
Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield 
Subdivision, Section 2, consisting of 1.168 acres of land located at the 
northwest corner of Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The Council will be considering a revised preliminary plan for Stonefield at their 
October 7, 2009 regular meeting.  This is the second section to be platted in this 
subdivision. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
This final plat consists of eight (8) single family lots.  Access to this section will be 
provided from the existing Sandstone Trail.  Water service is being provided by 
Goforth.  Wastewater service is being provided by South Buda WCID #1.  The City 
of Buda will be responsible for maintenance of the wastewater facilities pursuant to 
the WCID agreement. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
N/A 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Full size copies of the final plat have been included in your packet.  All staff review 
comments have been adequately addressed.  Staff recommends approval of this 
final plat and the P&Z unanimously recommended approval on September 22, 
2009. 

83



84



  
 

City Council 
Agenda Item Report 

October 07, 2009 
 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  
Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield 
Subdivision, Section 3, consisting of 14.171 acres of land located northeast of 
the corner of Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The Council will be considering a revised preliminary plan for Stonefield at their 
October 7, 2009 regular meeting.  This is the third section to be platted in this 
subdivision. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
This final plat consists of 26 single family lots, one (1) pedestrian path lot and one 
(1) drainage and water quality easement lot.  Access to this section will be provided 
through the extension of the existing Shellstone Trail and Sandstone Trail and the 
creation of a new street, Travertine Trail.  Water service is being provided by 
Goforth.  Wastewater service is being provided by South Buda WCID #1.  The City 
of Buda will be responsible for maintenance of the wastewater facilities pursuant to 
the WCID agreement. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
N/A 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Full size copies of the final plat have been included in your packet.  All staff review 
comments have been adequately addressed.  Staff recommends approval of this 
final plat and the P&Z unanimously recommended approval on September 22, 
2009. 

85



86



87



  
 

City Council 
Agenda Item Report 

October 07, 2009 
 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  
Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield 
Subdivision, Section 4, consisting of 9.350 acres of land located northwest of 
the corner of Hillside Terrace and Old Goforth Road. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

The Council will be considering a revised preliminary plan for Stonefield at their 
October 7, 2009 regular meeting.  This is the fourth section to be platted in this 
subdivision. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
This final plat consists of 47 single family lots, one (1) pedestrian path and PUE lot 
and one (1) landscape lot.  Access to this section will be provided through the 
extension of Travertine Trail from the adjacent Section 3 and the creation of a new 
street, Jasper Trail.  Water service is being provided by Goforth.  Wastewater 
service is being provided by South Buda WCID #1.  The City of Buda will be 
responsible for maintenance of the wastewater facilities pursuant to the WCID 
agreement. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 
N/A 

 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Full size copies of the final plat have been included in your packet.  All staff review 
comments have been adequately addressed.  Staff recommends approval of this 
final plat and the P&Z unanimously recommended approval on September 22, 
2009. 

88



89



90



  
 

City Council Agenda Item Report 
October 7, 2009 

 
AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  

Contact – Ed Theriot, City Planner 
512-312-0084 / ed@etrdevcon.com  

 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a request by 
Clear Wireless, LLC for a Tower License Agreement to allow the placement of 
an a wireless communications system on the City of Buda water tower located 
at 500 S. Loop 4 in Buda, Texas. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

Clear Wireless, LLC has requested permission to place a wireless communications 
system on the City water tower located at 500 S. Loop 4.  The system will consist of 
three antenna arrays attached to the existing tower catwalk (see attached pictures) 
and the installation of a 4’ high control box at the base of the tower. 
 
Clear Wireless is proposing the approval of a Cell Tower License Agreement that 
would provide for a six year lease of the water tower facility. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
The City of Buda currently has Lease Agreements with one other wireless 
communication company on the Loop 4 water tower.  This agreement is consistent 
with the terms of the other agreement. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The proposed lease specifies six annual payments to the City of Buda as follows: 

 
1st year $13,800 
2nd year $14,130 
3rd year $14,470 
4th year $14,820 
5th year $15,180 
6th year $15,552 
 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council discuss the item and consider action on the 
requested lease agreement. 
 

91



 
 
The City Council reviewed this item on August 18th and requested additional 
information related to the following: 
 
1.  Is Clear Wireless LLC a direct service provider or does the company provide 
antennas for other service providers?  Please describe the business operations 
of Clear Wireless LLC in detail. 

Clearwire Communications provides direct broadband high-speed internet 
service to consumers and businesses. Clear Wireless is a direct service provider 
offering 4G wireless services for consumers and businesses at speeds much 
faster than any other services provider.  Specifically; wireless mobile broadband, 
which includes internet, email and voice over IP services.   See attached 
company overview. 

2.  What will be the direct benefit to the citizens of Buda?  Will this communications 
system improve service to people in the Buda area?  If so, in what capacity? 

  Type of service is subscription based, and a competitor to cable modem, DSL, 
 and existing mobile broadband systems. 

3.  The City of Buda currently has several antennas on the tower for our Itron meter 
reading system.  Please provide a study that determines if any interference with this 
system will occur? 

  No harmful interference is predicted as a result of Clearwire’s proposed 
 collocation affecting existing carriers on this structure as per Waterford 
 Consultants study dated 9/23/09. 

4.  Please provide an engineering study that identifies how many systems are 
currently located on the tower, and how much space will there be for future systems 
if the Council decides to approve your request. 

There are currently 10 anntennas belonging to three separate systems on the 
water tower.  Structural capacity is currently available for six additional providers 
as per C. Faulkner Engineering Structural Assessment dated 9/224/09. 

 

  
 

92



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 1 of 18 

 
 

CITY OF BUDA CELL TOWER LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH 
 Clear Wireless, LLC 

 
 

This License is for  Clear Wireless LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, (hereinafter 
referred to as LICENSEE) and given by the CITY OF BUDA, TEXAS, a Texas Municipal 
Corporation, acting by and through its City Manager (hereinafter referred to as CITY), and  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, LICENSEE is requesting a license from the CITY OF BUDA for wireless 
communication services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CITY is the owner of a property which may be utilized by private wireless 
telecommunications providers to erect communication towers; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the CITY'S, goal to minimize the proliferation of telecommunications towers 
throughout the CITY by promoting the co-location of multiple providers on a single tower; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CITY intends to balance its desire to accommodate the telecommunications 
market by providing tower sites with its desire to protect public interests; and 
 

WHEREAS, a uniform structure is incorporated into this License in order to promote           
co-location and insure that all providers are treated the same. 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE THE ABOVE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

I.  
DEMISE, DESCRIPTION, AND USE 

 
1.01 The CITY is the owner of the following described real property lying and being 

situated in the County of Hays, and State of Texas: 500 S Main St. City of Buda,  and being more 
particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, 
(hereinafter referred to as the "PREMISES"). 
 
 1.02 Ownership of said property lies with the CITY OF BUDA and the CITY hereby agrees 
to a license to operate a wireless communication system on the CITY’S WATER TANK to 
LICENSEE in accordance with the provisions of this license agreement.  
 
 1.03 A wireless telecommunications provider that has obtained a CITY license is hereinafter 
referred to as “PROVIDER.” 
 

 
 

93



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 2 of 18 

 
 

1.04 A portion of the PREMISES is illustrated on Exhibit "A" showing the location of the 
CITY’S WATER TANK and related improvements and is hereinafter referred to as the "COMMON 
TOWER AREA."   
 

1.05 A portion of the PREMISES is illustrated on Exhibit "A" showing the location of 
electrical and telephone lines serving the COMMON TOWER AREA and is hereinafter referred to 
as the "COMMON UTILITY AREA." 
 
 1.06 The CITY hereby grants a license to LICENSEE for the placement of wireless 
communications equipment on the CITY’S WATER TANK for the construction, operation, control 
and maintenance of a wireless telecommunications facility (e.g. generator and related improvements 
on the City owned tower); and the non-exclusive use of the COMMON TOWER AREA for the 
construction, operation, control and maintenance of a wireless communications equipment and related 
improvements.  
 

1.07 Co-location by CITY.  The CITY shall maintain space on the CITY’S WATER 
TANK, placement of which will not interfere with LICENSEE’S operations therein. 
 

 
II. 

ACCEPTANCE AND CONDITION OF Clearwire US LLC, a Nevada limited liability company ’S 
LICENSE 

 
2.01 LICENSEE shall have the opportunity to examine the license allowance for space on 

the CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA and acknowledges that there is in 
and about them nothing dangerous to life, limb, or health and hereby waives any claim for damages 
that may arise from defects of that character after occupancy. However, such waiver of claims for 
damages is limited to damages resulting from an inherent danger or condition which the LICENSEE 
knew or should have known of by virtue of the inspection of the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA. The non-exclusive possession of the 
COMMON TOWER AREA shall be conclusive evidence of the LICENSEE'S acceptance thereof in 
good order and satisfactory condition, and the LICENSEE hereby accepts the license allowance of 
SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA in its present AS IS, 
WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS IN IT’S CURRENT CONDITION FORM, as suitable for their 
commercial purpose. 
 

2.02 LICENSEE agrees that no representations, respecting the condition of the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON 
TOWER AREA, and no promises to decorate, alter, repair, or improve the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON 
TOWER AREA, either before or after the execution hereof, have been made by 
the CITY or its agents to the LICENSEE unless the same are contained herein 
or made a part hereof by specific reference herein. 

 
 
 

94



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 3 of 18 

 
 

 
III. 

ACCESS 
 

3.01 LICENSEE shall use the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the 
COMMON TOWER AREA and any CITY facilities to which it is given access under this License 
with the same degree of care as it accords to its own properties, and insure that its equipment and use 
thereof shall not alter, damage or otherwise impair the usefulness of any such property, excepting for 
normal wear and tear, and shall in no way interfere with the operations of CITY'S property. 
 

3.02  LICENSEE shall have access at all times 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, to the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA during the 
term of this License.  The CITY shall make available to LICENSEE at all times the necessary 
arrangements required to gain access. Additionally, upon authorization by LICENSEE, its engineers, 
employees, contractors, or agents of LICENSEE, Federal Communications Commission 
representatives or person under their supervision shall be permitted to enter the LICENSED SPACE 
ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA at reasonable times for purposes 
of servicing equipment or other business related matters, with signing-in required of such parties. 
 
 

3.04  Except when escorted by a designated CITY representative, the LICENSEE'S 
personnel are required to notify the City Engineer prior to or immediately upon entering any secured 
CITY facility. 

 
3.05  Except for subcontractors which the CITY has approved, subcontractors used by the 

LICENSEE shall at all times be escorted by a LICENSEE representative when on a secured CITY 
facility.  Keys, lock combinations, magnetic access cards or other access control devices to the CITY 
properties that are issued to the LICENSEE shall not be loaned to subcontractor personnel. 

 
3.06  While on the CITY premises, LICENSEE'S personnel must wear a suitable photo ID 

badge, to be provided by the LICENSEE that includes a nominal 1/2” square personal photo, unique 
logo and labeling that identifies the LICENSEE and the employee by name, and a telephone number 
where confirmation of employment may be readily confirmed. 

95



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 4 of 18 

 
 

3.07  LICENSEE shall at all times assure that the CITY has a current list of all of its 
personnel who are authorized to be on the PREMISES on its behalf.  The CITY shall be notified to 
immediately remove the name of any employee subject to disciplinary probation or termination, and 
shall be notified of additional personnel to be added to this list.  CITY shall have the right to exclude 
any employee, agent or representative of the LICENSEE from CITY property, for reasonable cause, if 
deemed by the CITY to be necessary for the proper security of its facilities, the safety of its employees, 
or the enforcement of this license agreement. 
 

3.08  LICENSEE shall park its maintenance truck, or any other vehicle owned by 
LICENSEE, in a designated parking area as approved by the CITY .  CITY shall have the final 
authority to determine parking locations.  In no event, shall LICENSEE interfere with the operations of 
the CITY. 
 

IV. 
TERM AND OPTION TO EXTEND 

 
4.01  The CITY hereby grants a license to LICENSEE for space on the CITY’S WATER 

TANK and the non-exclusive use of the COMMON TOWER AREA; for the operation of a wireless 
telecommunications facility, and uses normally incident thereto, for a term of 6 Years, commencing 
on the date of execution and ending 11/15/2009 to 11/15/2015 thereafter subject to the termination 
provisions in Section 4.05 and 4.06.   

 
4.02 An extension shall be requested by LICENSEE'S by delivering to the CITY in person 

or by the United States mail, at any time on or before ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of 
the initial Six (6) year term of this License, written notice of its election to extend the term. 

 
4.03 Holding Over.  In the event the LICENSEE does not extend the initial Six (6) year 

term of this License as provided herein, and LICENSEE holds over beyond the expiration of the term 
hereof, LICENSEE shall be on a month-to-month license at rate which is 1.5 X the then current rate per 
month, payable on first day of each and every month thereafter, until the license is terminated in the 
manner provided by this License or by law. 

 
4.04 The right is expressly reserved to the CITY to temporarily suspend this License in case 

of an emergency. 
 

4.05  Further, in accordance with the current CITY OF BUDA City Ordinances, the Council 
may terminate this License in the event the use of the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER 
TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA shall have been found to be a nuisance.  In the event of 
termination by City Council, the CITY shall give the LICENSEE notice in writing at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the termination date, except in cases of emergency.   

96



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 5 of 18 

 
 

4.06 LICENSEE may cancel this License by giving ninety (90) days written notice to the 
CITY. 

 
4.07 Upon termination of this License by either the CITY or the LICENSEE, or by 

operation of law, the LICENSEE agrees to restore the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER 
TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA to its condition prior to the commencement of this 
License, except for reasonable wear and tear. LICENSEE also agrees to remove any improvements, 
including, but not limited to any buildings or antennas installed by the LICENSEE, if removal is 
requested by the CITY. 

 
 

V. 
LICENSE RATE STRUCTURE 

 
5.01 LICENSEE agrees to pay the CITY at the Office of the City Secretary, the rates for the 

term of years as provided for space on the CITY’S WATER TANK and the non-exclusive use of the 
COMMON TOWER AREA:   

 
1st year $13,800 
2nd year $14,130 
3rd year $14,470 
4th year $14,820 
5th year $15,180 
6th year $15,552 

 
 

In consideration for this License, LICENSEE shall tender to the CITY at the office of the City Manager 
City of Buda, P.O. Box 1218, 121 Main Street, Buda, TX  78610 a monthly payment of the yearly rate 
as set out in Section 5.01 above no later than the 5th day of each month. 
 

5.02 Effect of Default.  If the LICENSEE defaults in the payment of any monthly 
installment of the yearly rate hereunder, such installment shall bear interest at the highest rate allowed 
by Texas law at the time of default, from the date it is due until actually paid. In like manner, all other 
obligations, benefits, and moneys which may become due to the CITY from the LICENSEE under 
the terms hereof, or which are paid by the CITY because of LICENSEE'S default hereunder, shall 
bear interest at the highest rate allowed by Texas law, from the date due until paid, or in the case of 
sums paid by the CITY, because of the LICENSEE'S default hereunder, from the date such payments 
are made by the CITY until the date the CITY is reimbursed by LICENSEE therefor.  CITY, in its 
sole discretion, may waive any interest. 
 

5.03 Processing Fee.  Prior to erecting communication equipment or antennas, LICENSEE 
agrees to satisfy a processing fee of Two Thousand Five Hundred and no/100 dollars ($2,500.00). 
 
 
 

97



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 6 of 18 

 
 

 
VI. 

CO-LOCATION, TOWER EXTENSION COSTS 
 

6.01 CITY, in its sole discretion, has the authority to determine whether a CITY owned 
property is suitable for a wireless telecommunications tower or antenna. CITY will identify possible 
sites through a Site Selection process. Sites identified by the CITY through its Site Selection process 
do not preclude the CITY from approving additional CITY owned sites suggested by a PROVIDER. 
However, each time an additional site is approved; all locally licensed wireless telecommunications 
PROVIDERS will be notified and given the opportunity to co-locate on that site. 
 

6.02 All Licensees who license space on the CITY’S WATER TANK shall abide by the 
requirements set by the CITY related to the use of tower space through all applicable City Ordinances, 
including Zoning rules and regulations, Unified Development Code rules, Building Code rules and 
regulations, and all other City, State and Federal laws, rules and policies, including, but not limited to, 
those described in this License. 

 
 

VII. 
INTERFERENCE 

 
7.01 LICENSEE agrees that its equipment on the CITY’S WATER TANK and the 

COMMON TOWER AREA and the operation thereof will not cause any harmful interference, 
electromagnetic or otherwise, to the useful operation of the CITY'S fire, police and emergency 
services equipment and/or any communications equipment. 
 

7.02 Should the CITY determine that the LICENSEE'S operation is causing such harmful 
interference, it shall notify the LICENSEE, and after receipt of such notice, LICENSEE will be 
given a reasonable period of time, at least thirty (30) days, to correct such harmful interference or 
remove the equipment which is causing such interference. However, if such interference creates an 
emergency situation, as determined by the CITY, then the thirty (30) day period does not apply, and 
the provider shall rectify the problem immediately, or cease operations on that tower until the problem 
is rectified.  Costs of reducing such interference shall be borne by the LICENSEE. 
 
 

 
VIII. 

UTILITIES 
 

8.01 LICENSEE shall maintain separate utility meters or sub-meters on the PREMISES.  
LICENSEE shall, during the term hereof, pay all charges for telephone, gas, electricity, water or any 
other power or utilities used by it for or on LICENSEE'S LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA before they shall become delinquent and shall 
hold the CITY harmless from any liability therefore. 
 

8.02 The CITY licenses to LICENSEE the non-exclusive use of the COMMON UTILITY 

98



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 7 of 18 

 
 

AREA for the construction, operation, control and maintenance of electrical and telephone lines to 
service the COMMON TOWER AREA. 
 
 

IX. 
INSURANCE 

 
9.01 LICENSEE agrees to secure, prior to commencing any activities under this License, 

and to maintain, with respect to the LICENSED SPACE ON THE CITY’S WATER TANK from 
the execution date of this License and for the duration of this License and for the duration of this 
License and any extensions thereof, insurance, with companies admitted to do business in the State of 
Texas, in the following types and amounts to cover the indemnity provision as described in Article XI 
of this License. 

 
 Type Amount 
A. Workers Compensation and Employer’s 

Liability 
 

Statutory - $500,000.00 each  
Occurrence 

B. Commercial General Liability to  
include coverage for the following  
where the exposure exists: 

(1) Premises/Operations 
(2) Independent Contractors 
(3) Products/Completed Operations 
(4) Personal Injury 
(5) Contractual Liability 
 

Combined Single Limit for Bodily  
Injury and Property Damage: 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence (or 
its equivalent) 

C. As applicable, if requested by City’s  
Risk Manager: 
 
Business Automobile Liability Insurance 
to include coverage for: 

(1) Owned/Leased Automobiles 
(2) Non-owned Automobiles 
(3) Hired Automobiles 
 
 

Combined Single Limit for Bodily  
Injury and Property Damage: 
$500,000.00 or its equivalent 

D. Property Insurance for physical damage 
 to the property of a LICENSEE,  
including improvements and betterments 
of LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
CELL TOWER and the COMMON 
TOWER AREA 

Coverage for a minimum of one  
hundred percent (100%) of the 
replacement cost  

 
 

99



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 8 of 18 

 
 

 
E.  LICENSEE may choose to provide Self-Insurance for C. and D. above only if 

LICENSEE provides a certification, executed by its authorized officer, and has a 
financial worth and provable assets sufficient to meet Self-Insurance standards which will 
be available to cover the indemnity provisions as described in Article XI in this License 
Agreement.  The Self-Insurance certification is subject to the approval of City Manager. 
If approved, the LICENSEE agrees to maintain its financial worth and provable assets to 
sufficiently cover the applicable insurance and indemnity provisions. 

 
9.02 LICENSEE further agrees that with respect to the above required insurances, the CITY 

shall: 
 

A. Be named as an additional insured on General Liability coverage. 
 

B. Be provided with a Waiver of Subrogation, but only as it pertains to Workers' 
Compensation and Employers' Liability. 

 
C. Be provided with thirty (30) days advance notice, in writing, of cancellation of material 

change. 
 

D. Be provided with Certificates of Insurance evidencing the above required insurance, prior 
to the commencement of this License and thereafter, with certificates evidencing 
renewals or replacements of said policies of insurance at least fifteen (15) days prior to 
the expiration or cancellation of such policy. Said notices and Certificates of Insurance 
shall be provided to: 

 
(1)  City Secretary of the CITY OF BUDA, and 

 
  (2)  City Manager of the CITY OF BUDA, and 
 

(3)  City Engineer of the CITY OF BUDA. 
 

9.03 Any alternate plan for Employer's Liability must be approved in advance by the City 
Manager. 
 

9.04 The City Manager is hereby authorized to reduce or increase the requirements set forth 
above in the event he or she determines that such reduction or increase is in the CITY'S best interest. 
 

9.05 LICENSEE further agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, each 
insurance policy required by this License shall contain the following clauses: 

 
"This insurance shall not be canceled, limited in scope or coverage, or non-renewed until after 
thirty (30) days' written notice has been given to: 
 

 
City Manager, City of Buda 

100



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 9 of 18 

 
 

 P.O. Box 1218 
 121 Main Street 
 Buda, TX  78610  
 

and 
 

(a) City Secretary, City of Buda 
 P.O. Box 1218 
 121 Main Street 
 Buda, TX  78610  
 

 
 

"It is agreed that the insurance provided by LICENSEE is primary to any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the City of Buda." 
 

X. 
INDEMNITY 

 
10.01 LICENSEE covenants and agrees to FULLY INDEMNIFY and HOLD 

HARMLESS, the CITY and the elected officials, employees, officers, directors, volunteers and 
representatives of the CITY, individually or collectively, from and against any and all costs, 
claims, liens, damages, losses, expenses, fees, fines, penalties, proceedings, actions, demands, 
causes of action, liability and suits of any kind and nature, including but not limited to, 
personal injury or death and property damage, made upon the CITY, directly or indirectly 
arising out of, resulting from or related to LICENSEE'S activities under this LICENSE, 
including any acts or omissions of LICENSEE, and any respective agent, officer, director, 
representative, employee, consultant or sublessor of LICENSEE, and their respective officers, 
agents, employees, directors and representatives while in the exercise or performance of the 
rights or duties under this LICENSE, all without, however, waiving any governmental 
immunity available to the city under Texas Law and without waiving any defenses of the 
parties under Texas Law.  The provisions of this indemnification are solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto and are not intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or 
otherwise, to any person or entity.  LICENSEE shall promptly advise the city in writing of 
any claim or demand against the CITY or LICENSEE known to the LICENSEE related to or 
arising out of LICENSEE'S activities under this LICENSE and shall see to the investigation 
and defense of such claim or demand at LICENSEE'S cost.  The CITY shall have the right, at 
its option and at its own expense, to participate in such defense without relieving LICENSEE 
of any of its obligations under this paragraph.

101



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 10 of 18 

 
 

 
 
XI. 

MAINTENANCE AND SAFETY 
 

11.01 LICENSEE shall not commit, or suffer to be committed, any waste on the PREMISES, 
nor shall it maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance or commission of any nuisance on the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA or use the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA for any 
unlawful purpose and, LICENSEE shall, at all times, keep the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA neat, clean, and clear of any potential safety 
hazards and unused equipment. 
 

11.02 LICENSEE shall prominently post easily readable signs on the LICENSED SPACE 
ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA advising of any hazard(s) which 
may be common, known, or that the provider should be aware of through the exercise of ordinary 
diligence, to the operation of the equipment located on said LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA. 
 
 11.03 LICENSEE shall have a reasonable time, not to exceed ten (10) days after CITY mails 
notice to the LICENSEE, to correct any safety hazard that exists on the LICENSED SPACE ON 
CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA after receipt of notice from any 
appropriate CITY official.  Failure to comply with this provision may result in termination of this 
License, however, the CITY will extend such time period if good faith efforts are being made by the 
LICENSEE, to the CITY'S satisfaction, to correct said hazard. 
 

11.04 LICENSEE will make all arrangements for installation of any control lines, or other 
equipment as may be required for the operation of its radio equipment. If, under the terms of this 
License, power is not specifically included in the license, LICENSEE shall arrange for and bear the 
cost of the installation and use of power facilities using space provided by the CITY for the power 
meter. 
 

11.05 LICENSEE will, at the termination of this License, return the LICENSED SPACE 
ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA to the CITY in as good 
condition as at the commencement of the term hereof, usual wear and tear, acts of God, or unavoidable 
accident only excepted. 
 

11.06 LICENSEE agrees that the CITY shall not be liable for any theft, damages, or 
destruction of signs, goods, and/or other property of the LICENSEE both during the initial term and 
any extended terms of this License and as so left on the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER 
TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA after the LICENSEE vacates the LICENSED SPACE 
ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA. If said signs, goods, and/or 
other property placed by the LICENSEE upon the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER 
TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA are not removed by it within thirty (30) days after the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA are vacated, 
then the CITY may remove and sale at public sale the same without further notice or liability therefore 

102



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 11 of 18 

 
 

to the LICENSEE. 
 

XII. 
ABATEMENTS 

 
12.01 It is understood and agreed that the CITY is not an insurer, and that the rates herein 

provided is based solely on the value of the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and 
the COMMON TOWER AREA provided in this License. If the LICENSEE'S use of the 
LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA is 
interrupted due to acts of God, the rates for the period during which use is interrupted shall abate, and 
the CITY shall have no other liability beyond the payment abatement. 
 
 

XIII. 
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLET 

 
13.01 LICENSEE shall not transfer or assign this License or any of the privileges associated 

with this License without having first obtained the prior written consent of the CITY which may be 
given only by or pursuant to an ordinance enacted by the City Council of Buda, Texas, provided, 
however, that the foregoing shall not apply to and shall not prevent the assignment of this License to 
LICENSEE'S affiliate or to any corporation with which the LICENSEE may merge or consolidate or 
which may succeed to a controlling interest in the business of the LICENSEE.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing and for so long as any pledge or collateral assignment of the LICENSEE'S interest in the 
License shall be by instrument substantially in such form as shall have previously been approved by 
the City Council, the consent of the CITY to such pledge or collateral assignment may be given by the 
CITY acting by and through the City Manager. 

XIV. 
IMPROVEMENTS AND REPAIRS 

 
14.01 LICENSEE shall not construct any material improvements or structures on the 

LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA not 
otherwise allowed under the terms of this License, nor shall LICENSEE make any material 
alterations to said LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER 
AREA, other than repairs in the ordinary course of business without the prior written approval of the 
CITY as evidenced by the passage of an ordinance, if necessary, and any and all other necessary 
departments and agencies of the CITY, which approval shall not he unreasonably withheld. 
 

14.02 LICENSEE covenants that it shall not bind, or attempt to bind, the CITY for the 
payment of any money in connection with the repair, alteration, addition, or reconstruction in, on, or 
about the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA.  
Further, the LICENSEE agrees to remove, within thirty (30) days after filing, by payment or provisions 
for bonding any mechanic's or materialman's liens filed against the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S 
WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA and to indemnify CITY in connection with 

103



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 12 of 18 

 
 

such liens to the extent of any damages, expenses, attorney's fees, or court costs incurred by CITY. 
 
 

XV. 
PERMITS, TAXES, AND LICENSES 

 
15.01 LICENSEE shall pay, on or before its respective due dates, to the appropriate collecting 

authority, all Federal, State, and local taxes and fees which are now or may hereafter he levied upon 
the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK, or upon LICENSEE, or upon the business 
conducted by the Licensee on the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK, or upon any of 
the LICENSEE'S property used in connection therewith; and shall maintain in current status all 
Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by 
the LICENSEE.  Failure to comply with the foregoing provision shall constitute grounds for 
termination of this License by the CITY, however, the LICENSEE reserves the right to contest the 
tax, if such contest occurs, LICENSEE agrees to post a bond in CITY'S favor in the amount of said 
taxes contested, including the amount of all penalties and interest due or to be due during the period of 
such contest. 

. 
 
 
 

XVI. 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 
 16.01 The following events shall be deemed to be event of default by the LICENSEE under 
this License: 
 

A. LICENSEE shall fail to pay monthly installments for the yearly rate as provided for in 
this License and such failure shall continue for a period of ten (10) days following receipt 
of written notice of failure to pay any monthly installment of the yearly rate when due 
and owing. 

 
B. Except for the correction of safety hazards as provided in Section 11.03 and of 

interference as provided in Section 7.02 hereinbefore, LICENSEE shall fail to comply 
with any material term, as reasonably determined by the CITY, provision or covenant of 
this License, other than the rate payment, and shall not cure such failure within thirty 
(30) days after written notice thereof to the LICENSEE. 

 
C. The taking by a court of competent jurisdiction of the LICENSEE and its assets 

pursuant to proceedings under the provisions of any Federal or State reorganization 
code or act, insofar as the following enumerated remedies for default are provided for 
or permitted in such code or act. 

 
16.02 Upon the occurrence of an event of default as heretofore provided, CITY may, as its 

option, declare this License, and all rights and interest created by it, terminated.  Upon CITY electing 
to terminate, this License shall cease and come to an end as if that were the day originally fixed herein 

104



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 13 of 18 

 
 

for the expiration of the term hereof; or the CITY, its employees, representatives, agents, or attorney 
may, at its option, resume possession of the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and 
the COMMON TOWER AREA and license the same for the remainder of the term, whether initial or 
an extended term, for the best rate the CITY, its, employees, representatives, agents, or attorney may 
obtain for the license of the LICENSEE without relieving the LICENSEE of any liability hereunder 
as to rates still due and owing in this License, or any extension thereof, as applicable.  LICENSEE 
shall make good any deficiency. 
 

16.03 Any termination of this License, as herein provided, except under Article IV, Section 
4.06, shall not relieve the LICENSEE from the payment of such sum or sums that shall then be due 
and payable or become due and payable to the CITY hereunder, or any claim for damages then or 
theretofore accruing against the LICENSEE hereunder, and any such sum or sums or claim for 
damages by any remedy provided for by law, or from recovering damages from the LICENSEE for 
any default hereunder.  All rights, options, and remedies of the CITY contained in this Licensee shall 
be cumulative of the other, and CITY shall have the right to pursue any one or all of such remedies or 
any other remedy or relief available at law or in equity, whether or not stated in this License. No 
waiver by the CITY of a breach of any of the covenants, conditions, or restrictions of this License 
shall he construed or held to be a waiver of any succeeding or preceding breach of the same or any 
covenant, condition, or restriction herein contained. 
 

16.04 Upon any such expiration or termination of this License, LICENSEE shall quit and 
peacefully surrender the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON 
TOWER AREA to the CITY within a reasonable period of time, and CITY, upon or at any 
reasonable time after such expiration or termination may, without further notice, enter upon and re-
enter the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON TOWER AREA 
and possess and repossess itself thereof, by force, summary proceedings, ejectment, or otherwise, any 
may dispossess LICENSEE and remove the LICENSEE and all other persons and property, 
including all signs, furniture, trade fixtures, and other property which may be disputed as to its status 
as fixtures, from the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the COMMON 
TOWER AREA, and such action by the CITY shall not constitute the CITY'S acceptance of 
abandonment and surrender of the LICENSED SPACE ON CITY’S WATER TANK and the 
COMMON TOWER AREA by LICENSEE or prevent the CITY from pursing all legal remedies 
available to it. 
 

16.05 Bankruptcy on the part of the LICENSEE, or of any of its assignees or sublessees, 
shall be deemed an act of default and a breach of this License. 

 
 

XVII. 
QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 
17.01 CITY covenants and agrees, subject to the provisions of this License, that the 

LICENSEE, on paying the rate and all other charges in this License provided for and observing and 
performing the covenants, agreements, and conditions of this License on its part to be observed and 
performed, shall lawfully and quietly hold, occupy, and enjoy the PREMISES during the term 
without hindrance or molestation of any kind whatsoever. 

105



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 14 of 18 

 
 

 
XVIII.  

ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS 
 

 Expect as provided by law, CITY represents that is has no knowledge of any substance,  
Chemical or waste (collectively, “Hazardous Substance”) on the Property that is identified as 
hazardous, toxic or dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation.  CITY and 
LICENSEE shall not introduce or use any Hazardous Substance on the Property in violation of any 
applicable law.  CITY shall be responsible for, and shall promptly conduct any investigation and 
remediation as required by any applicable environmental laws, all spills or other releases of any 
Hazardous Substance not caused solely by Tenant, that have occurred or which may occur on the 
Property.  Each party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other from and against any 
and all administrative and judicial actions and rulings, claims, causes of action, demands and liability 
(collectively, “Claims”) including, but not limited to, damages, costs, expenses, assessments, 
penalties, fines, losses, judgments and reasonable attorney fees that the indemnitee may suffer or incur 
due to the existence or discovery of any Hazardous Substances on the Property or the migration of any 
Hazardous Substance to other properties or the release of any Hazardous Substance into the 
environment (collectively, “Actions”), that relate to or arise from the indemnitor’s activities on the 
Property.  CITY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless from Claims resulting from Actions 
on the Property not caused by CITY or LICENSEE prior to and during the Initial Term and any 
Renewal Term.  The indemnifications in this section specifically include, without limitation, costs 
incurred in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or 
restoration work required by any governmental authority.  This Section shall survive the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
 

XIX. 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
19.01 LICENSEE acknowledges that it is informed that Texas law prohibits contracts between 

the CITY and any local public official, such as a CITY officer or employee, and that the prohibition 
extends to an officer and employee of CITY agencies, such as CITY owned utilities and certain 
CITY boards and commissions, and to contracts involving a business entity in which the official has a 
substantial interest, as defined by Texas law, if it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on the matter 
would confer an economic benefit on the business entity. LICENSEE certifies (and this License is 
made in reliance thereon) that neither it, its individual officers, employees, or agents, nor any person 
having a substantial interest in this License, is an officer or employee of the CITY or any of its 
agencies.  The LICENSEE further certifies that it has complied with the CITY'S ethics ordinance. 

106



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 15 of 18 

 
 

 
XX. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT 
 

20.01 This License, together with its attached Exhibit "A", in writing, constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties. 
 

20.02 No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this License shall be binding 
unless the same be in writing, dated subsequent to the date hereof and duly executed by the parties 
hereto. 
 
 

XXI.  
SEPARABILITY  

 
21.01 If any clause or provision of this License is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under present 

or future laws effective during the term of this License, then and in that event it is the intention of the 
parties hereto that the remainder of this License shall not be affected thereby, and it is also the intention 
of the parties to this License that in lieu of each clause or provision of this License that is illegal, invalid, 
or unenforceable, there be added as part of this License a clause or provision as similar in terms to such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable clause or provision as may be possible and be legal, valid, and 
enforceable. 
 

 
XXII.  

NOTICES 
 

22.01 Any notice or demand given under this License shall be in writing and shall be effectively 
delivered when deposited in the United States Mail, in Certified or Registered form, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 
 

If to the CITY: 
 
City Secretary’s Office 
City of Buda 
P.O. Box 1218 
121 Main Street 
Buda, TX  78610  
 
 

With a copy to: 
 
City Manager’s Office 
City of Buda 
P.O. Box 1218 
121 Main Street 
Buda, TX  78610  
 

If to the LICENSEE: 
___________________________________ 
Clear Wireless LLC 
Attn: Site Leasing 
4400 Carrillon Point 
Kirkland WA. 98033 

With copies to: 
___________________________________ 
ClearWireless LLC 
Attn: Site Leasing 
4400 Carrillon Point 
Kirkland WA. 98033 

107



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 16 of 18 

 
 

Telephone 425-2167900 
Fax:425-216.7600 
Email Sitelease@clearwire.com 
___________________________________ 
 
 
 

Telephone 425-216-7900 
Fax:425-216.7600 
 
___________________________________ 
 
 

 
22.02 Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only when actually received. Either 

party may change the address herein specified from time to time giving five days written notice of same. 
 

22.03 This Contract is to be construed under the laws of the State of Texas and is performable 
in Hays County, Texas. 
 
 

XXIII. 
PARTIES BOUND 

 
 23.01 The covenants and agreements herein contained shall inure to the benefit of and be 
binding upon the parties hereto, their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns, and if 
there shall be more than one party designated as the LICENSEE in this License, they shall each be 
bound jointly and severally hereunder. 
 
 

XXIV.  
LAW TO APPLY 

 
24.01 THIS LICENSE SHALL BE CONSTRUED UNDER AND IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE LAWS OF TIE STATE OF TEXAS, AND ALL OBLIGATIONS OF THE 
PARTIES CREATED HEREUNDER ARE PERFORMABLE IN HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
 

XXV.  
GENDER 

 
25.01 Words of any gender used in this License shall he held and construed to include any 

other gender, and words in the singular number shall he held to include the plural, unless the context 
otherwise requires. 

 
XXVI.  

CAPTIONS 
 

26.01 The captions contained in this License are for convenience of reference only and in no way 
limit or enlarge the terms and conditions of this License. 
 
 

108



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 17 of 18 

 
 

 
XXVII. 

AUTHORITY 
 

27.01 The signer of this License for the LICENSEE hereby represents and warrants that he or 
she has full authority to execute this License on behalf of the LICENSEE. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in duplicate originals, we have affirmed our signatures this day of

_________________ , 2007. 
 
 

CITY OF BUDA 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
          Kenneth Williams, City Manager 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Printed name: _________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
          Toni Milam, City Secretary 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Printed name:__________________________ 
Title:_________________________________ 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Charles E. Zech, City Attorney 
City of Buda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

109



City of Buda Cell Tower License Agreement With Clear Wireless LLC 
Page 18 of 18 

 
 

 
Exhibit A 

 

 

110



CF E TELECOM 
907 West 5th Street, Suite 250 

Austin, Texas 78703 
 

PO Box 1528 
Austin, Texas 78767-1528 

 

P: 512.495.9470 
F: 512.495.9473 

 
 

C Faulkner Engineering   Austin, Texas 
Texas Board of Professional Engineers Firm Registration Number 7728 

 
 
August 05, 2009 

 
 

Robert Trimble 
Construction Manager 
Network Deployment South Texas 
Clear Wireless, LLC 
4400 Carillon Point 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
Tel: 480.678.7290 
Fax: 425.216.7900 
 

Subject:  Structural Assessment of an Existing Water Tower  
Clear Wireless TX-AUS0163 Buda WT (4163.039-03) 

 
Carrier Designation: Clear Wireless Co-Locate 
 Carrier Site Number: TX-AUS0163 
 Carrier Site Name: Buda Water Tank 
 
Site Data: 500 S. Loop 4, Buda, Hays County, TX 786 10  
 Latitude 30.07617 °°°° N, Longitude 97.84528 °°°° W 
 Existing Water Tank 
 

Dear Mr. Trimble, 

CFE Telecom (CFE), is pleased to submit this “Structural Assessment Report” to determine the suitability 
of the water tower to support the (1) proposed Argus LLPX310R 42” panel antenna and (1) Motorola DAP I/II 
RF Module at each of (3) sector locations around the periphery of the water tower catwalk.  In addition, (1) 
Andrew VHLP2-11 24” MW antenna will also be mounted at the same elevation. 

An evaluation of the relative weights and wind loads of the proposed antennas was made to assess the 
impact on the water tank.  This assessment has been performed in accordance with the IBC 2006 and based 
on a basic wind speed of 90 mph.  

For each sector, the proposed antenna will be mounted at an elevation of 130 ft. (center-line of catwalk) on a 
2 1/2” standard pipe mount, attached directly to the catwalk of the water tower. 
 
Representatives of CFE visited the site to photograph and document the existing water tank. See attached 
photographs.  The water tank was found to have approximately (10) antennas mounted to the catwalk and 
catwalk railing and approximately (7) antennas mounted on top of the tank.   
 

DOCUMENTS PROVIDED 
DOCUMENTS BY COMPANY REFERENCE DATE 

Prelim Const. Dwgs., rev 0 CFE Telecom TX-AUS0163 5/26/2009 

Tank Mapping CFE Telecom Project No. 4163.039-03 07/31/2009 

111



112



CLEAR WIRELESS  CFE PROJECT NUMBER 4163.039-03 
TX-AUS0163 BUDA WATER TANK  AUGUST 05, 2009 
WATER TOWER STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT          

PAGE  3 
 

Attachment - Photos 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Location of Typical 
Proposed Sector 
Antenna 

Location of Typical 
Proposed MW 
Antenna 

113



CLEAR WIRELESS  CFE PROJECT NUMBER 4163.039-03 
TX-AUS0163 BUDA WATER TANK  AUGUST 05, 2009 
WATER TOWER STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT          

PAGE  4 
 

Attachment - Proposed Antenna Mount 
 

Proposed Panel 
Antenna 

Proposed DAP 
Head 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  NNoo..    ______________  
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  SSttaannlleeyy  RR..  FFeeeess,,  PP..EE..,,  CCFFMM  CCiittyy  EEnnggiinneeeerr  331122--00008844  

sfees@ci.buda.tx.us 
 

 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action to accept the donation of Water and 

Wastewater Line Easements by Buda Wood Works, Davey Plumbing, 
Thomas and Theresa Lemman and Chisum Chance Inc.  for the Rebel 
Drive Water and Wastewater Line extensions and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the easements and contracts. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
The City of Buda authorized Lockwood Andrews and Newnam (LAN) to proceed 
with easement acquisition for extending the waterline from Rebel Drive south 
along FM 967 and then east to Well #3.  LAN was also authorized to proceed 
with easement acquisition for extending the wastewater line from Bella Vita 
Subdivision south along FM 967 approximately 1,450 lf to provide wastewater 
service to the properties along FM 967. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

The Buda Wood Works property owners have agreed to a purchase price to 
cover the cost of relocating the fence for the water and wastewater line 
extensions.  The City of Buda has agreed to waive the wastewater tap fees in 
exchange for donating the necessary water and wastewater easements.  Davey 
Plumbing has agreed to a purchase price to cover the cost of damages to the 
sprinkler system.  Chisum Chance Inc. and Thomas and Theresa Lemman have 
agreed to donate the necessary easements.   

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

The City will not collect the $688 tap fee for each property. 
 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 

151



 

Staff recommends City Council accept the donation of the Water and 
Wastewater Line Easements by Buda Wood Works, Davey Plumbing, Thomas 
and Theresa Lemman and Chisum Chance Inc. for the Rebel Drive Water and 
Wastewater Line extensions and authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
easements and contracts. 

 

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  NNoo..    ______________  
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  SSttaannlleeyy  RR..  FFeeeess,,  PP..EE..,,  CCFFMM  CCiittyy  EEnnggiinneeeerr  331122--00008844  

sfees@ci.buda.tx.us 
 

 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action accepting the donation of a 

Wastewater Easement by Southern Hills Church of Christ of Buda, 
John Godwin and Hays Consolidated Independent School District for 
the Hays Consolidated Independent School District Elementary #12 
and authorizing the City Manager to execute the easements and 
donation contracts. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
The City of Buda authorized Lockwood Andrews and Newnam (LAN) to 
proceed with easement acquisition for the wastewater line for the Hays 
Consolidated Independent School District (HCISD) Elementary #12.  The 
easement across the HCISD property was donated as part of the Final Plat 
for the property.  There were additional easements required at the eastern 
end of the project on the north side of FM 967.  These properties are owned 
by Southern Hill Church of Christ of Buda, John Godwin and HCISD. 
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
The property owners have agreed to donate the necessary wastewater 
easements in exchange for the City of Buda waiving the wastewater tap fees. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
The City will not collect the $688 tap fee for each property. 

 
4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends City Council accept the donation of a Wastewater 
Easement by Southern Hills Church of Christ of Buda, John Godwin and 
Hays Consolidated Independent School District for the Hays Consolidated 

184



Independent School District Elementary #12 and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the easements and donation contracts. 

 

185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

RReegguullaarr  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm    
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  MMiikkee  BBeeggggss,,  CCiittyy  ooff  BBuuddaa,,  512-312-0084  

mbeggs@ci.buda.tx.us 
 

 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the Approval of the 
placement of the State mandated signs regarding the use of Cell Phones 
in School Zones. 

 
 

1. Background/History 
 The Public Works Dept. received documentation from TXDOT stating that HB 
55 was passed by the State Legislature which prohibits the use of cell phones 
in school zones that are posted with signs prohibiting the use of cell phones.  
This prohibition does not apply to the use of cell phones in the zone with a 
hands free device. The enforcement in these zones cannot be carried out if 
the signage is not there. 

                       
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 The current locations for the City of Buda for signs to be posted will be 
located at Main St. at San Antonio St. and Elm St. at Main St. Other school 
zones within the city are located on state highways and will be posted by 
TXDOT after notification by the city. The surrounding cities are posting signs 
prohibiting cell phone use.  The law goes into effect September 1, 2009.   
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 The City of Buda requires four signs in the two zones with a total cost of 
$100.00 to the City of Buda. Signs in school zones along state highways will 
be installed at TXDOT’s cost. Possibly more revenues due to citations being 
issued. 
 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 City Council action on the possible placement of signs stating the prohibition 
of cell phone use in school zones in the City of Buda with enforcement action 
allowed by law enforcement agencies.  

246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



  
 

CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  RReeppoorrtt  
OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22000099  

 

AAggeennddaa  IItteemm  NNoo..    
CCoonnttaacctt  ––  KKeennnneetthh  WWiilllliiaammss,,  CCiittyy  ooff  BBuuddaa,,  512-312-0084  

kwilliams@ci.buda.tx.us   
 

 
SUBJECT: Deliberation and possible action on the request for funding for 
the Buda Fine Arts Festival in the amount of $4,000 for FY 09-10. 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
Staff has had a request from a City Council Member to reconsider The Buda 
Fine Arts Festival organization for funding in the FY 2009-2010 Hotel/Motel 
Tax Budget. Previously in budget discussions, for various reason this group 
was not approved for funding. Their signature event is the Buda Fine Arts 
Festival which is held on the first weekend in October in conjunction with Fire 
Fest.                                   
 

2. FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY 
The Fine Arts Festival group has been funded by the City of Buda in the past. 
A budget with accompanying expenses has been submitted as supporting 
documentation. The festival will be held in the greenbelt area and they have 
paid their rental fee and deposit for the use of the park. Fine Art will be on 
display for sale by local and visiting artist.    
  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
  The Fine Arts Festival was funded in the amount of $4,000 dollars in the 

2008-2009 budget. This money would come out of Hotel/Motel Tax Funds of 
which money is available. Activities supported by the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 
should help to promote tourism and visitors to the city or put “heads in beds” 
at hotels/motels in the City of Buda.  
 

4. ACTION OPTIONS/RECOMMENDATION 
 City Council consideration of funding the Fine Arts Festival through 
Hotel/Motel Tax proceeds for fiscal year 2009/2010. 

 
   
 
 
 

255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264


	Agenda
	Review of the Parks Regulations Ordinance
	Workshop report
	Possible ordinance
	Commercial Use Checklist
	Special Event Packet

	Fire Chief, Clay Huckaby, Buda Fire Department, ESD #8, to make a brief presentation regarding the Susan G. Komen Foundation/American Cancer Society's Fundraiser "Care Enough to Wear Pink Campaign".
	Press Release
	T-Shirt Front
	T-Shirt Back

	Tom Dahlstrom, representing Pedernales Electric Co-op, will make a presentation to Mayor Lane and members of the Council providing them with an update on the Cooperative's activities in the Buda area as well as answer any questions.


	PEC Letter

	Hold a public hearing on a request for a change of zoning from Medium Density Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) for Lots 54-60, Block A, Lots 1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-5, Block E of the Green Meadows Subdivision Section 2B consisting of approximately 12.91 acres of land generally located at the intersection of Feathergrass Drive and Old West Trail.
	Green Meadows Rezoning MR-HR

	Hold a public hearing to receive written and/or oral comments regarding a City initiated proposal for the Full Purpose Annexation of certain properties containing approximately 157 acres of land located on the west side of IH 35, south of West Goforth Road and including the adjacent right-of-way (ROW) the same property being the Park 35 South Subdivision.
	Park 35S  Notice
	SR100709 - Park 35 Annexation Staff Report
	Park 35 Annexation Timetable
	Service_Plan_Park 35 Buda
	Park 35 South Annexation Area Map
	area 6 annexation description

	Approval of the September 10, 2009 Special Called Council Meeting Minutes.
	09-10-09 Minutes

	Approval of the September 15, 2009 City Council Minutes
	09-15-09

	Deliberation and possible action on the appointment of (2) Parks Commissioners.

	Agenda item report
	Eileen Altmiller application
	Janet and John applications

	Deliberation and possible action on a request for a change of zoning from Medium Density Residential (MR) to High Density Residential (HR) for Lots 54-60, Block A, Lots 1-37 Block C, Lots 1-2, Block D and Lots 1-5, Block E of the Green Meadows Subdivision Section 2B consisting of approximately 12.91 acres of land generally located at the intersection of Feathergrass Drive and Old West Trail.
	SR100709 - Green Meadows Rezoning
	Green Meadows Submittal Letter
	Green Meadows Zoning Exhibit
	Green Meadows Buildout Exhibit

	Deliberation and possible action on a revised Preliminary Plan for the Stonefield Subdivision located on the northeast corner of Hillside Terrace and IH 35 between Old Goforth Road and IH 35.
	SR100709 - Stonefield Revised Preliminary Plan
	Stonefield Revised Preliminary Plan Sheet 1
	Stonefield Revised Preliminary Plan Sheet 2
	Stonefield Revised Preliminary Plan Sheet 3
	Stonefield Revised Preliminary Plan Sheet 4

	Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, Section 2, consisting of 1.168 acres of land located at the northwest corner of Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail.
	SR100709 - Stonefield Section 2 Final Plat
	Stonefield Section 2 Final Plat

	Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, Section 3, consisting of 14.171 acres of land located northeast of the corner of Sandstone Trail and Shellstone Trail.
	SR100709 - Stonefield Section 3 Final Plat
	Stonefield Section 3 Final Plat Sheet1
	Stonefield Section 3 Final Plat Sheet2

	Deliberation and possible action on the Final Plat of Stonefield Subdivision, Section 4, consisting of 9.350 acres of land located northwest of the corner of Hillside Terrace and Old Goforth Road.
	SR100709 - Stonefield Section 4 Final Plat
	Stonefield Section 4 Final Plat Sheet1
	Stonefield Section 4 Final Plat Sheet2

	Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a request by Clear Wireless, LLC for a Tower License Agreement to allow the placement of an a wireless communications system on the City of Buda water tower located at 500 S. Loop 4 in Buda, Texas.
	SR100709 - Clear Wireless License Agreement
	TX-AUS0163_Water_Tank__License_Agreement_7-29_rev_per_MB_Final
	TX-AUS0163_Struct_letter
	Clearwire Future Capacity Structural Assessment Letter
	Clearwire Interference Study
	Clearwire Overview
	More on Clearwire
	Clearwire Site Plan

	Deliberation and possible action to accept the donation of Water and Wastewater Line Easements by Buda Wood Works, Davey Plumbing, Thomas and Theresa Lemman and Chisum Chance Inc.  for the Rebel Drive Water and Wastewater Line extensions and authorizing the City Manager to execute the easements and contracts.
	SR100709 Rebel Drive Buda Wood Works Purchase Contract & Water & Wastewater Easements
	Buda Wood Works Parcel 3 Water & Wastewater Easements
	Buda Wood Works Parcel 4 Water & Wastewater Easements
	Davey Plumbing Utility Easement & TCE
	Rebel, P8 TCE signed by owner 09-08-09
	Rebel P9 TCE signed by owner 09-08-09
	Rebel, P10 TCE signed by owner 09-08-09
	Rebel P1 Donation Contract signed by owners 09-14-09

	Deliberation and possible action accepting the donation of a Wastewater Easement by Southern Hills Church of Christ of Buda, John Godwin and Hays Consolidated Independent School District for the Hays Consolidated Independent School District Elementary #12 and authorizing the City Manager to execute the easements and donation contracts.
	SR100609 HCISD Elementary #12 Access & Wastewater Easements
	Southern Hills Signed Donation Contract 09-03-09
	Southern Hills Agreement for WW Line Easement 09-03-09
	Godwin's signed Donation Contract 09-03-09
	Easement Agreement for Wastewater Lines
	HCISD Elementary #12 - Dahlstrom Middle School Easement Agreement for Wastewater Lines

	Deliberation and possible action on the Approval of the placement of the State mandated signs regarding the use of Cell Phones in School Zones.
	Agenda Summary Report - Cell Phone Signs
	TXDot Info

	Deliberation and possible action on the request for funding for the Buda Fine Arts Festival in the amount of $4,000 for FY 09-10.
	Fine Arts Festival Agenda Summary Report
	Fine Arts Festival Receipts
	Hampton Inn Cover Letter


